LAO PEOPLE’S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
PEACE INDEPENDENCE DEMOCRACY UNITY PROSPERITY

® DB

Vientiane Capital, date 24 November 2025

nzyInusIuionzua zmnady
Joint Development Bank Public

Invitation Letter
Attention: All valued JDB's Shareholders
Subject: Invitation to JDB's Annual General Shareholders' Meeting for the year 2024

- Pursuant to the resolution on the Ordinary Board of Directors Meeting of Joint Development
Bank Public No. 163/JDB, dated 16 October 2025.

Joint Development Bank Public is honored to invite you, shareholders, to JDB's Annual
General Shareholders' Meeting, which will be held on Tuesday, 05 December 2025 at 9:00 hrs.
(Registration 8:30-9:00) at 6th floor Meeting Room, Joint Development Bank Public, Vientiane
Capital to discuss the issues as specified in the attachments.

Joint Development Bank Public has set 14 October 2025 to be the Closing Date of the
Shareholders (Record Date) to define the right of the shareholders to participate in JDB's Annual
General Shareholders' Meeting which has been duly disclosed.

Joint Development Bank Public encourages the shareholders, who are not convenient to attend
person, to grant the proxy to either one of the independent members of JDB board of Directors or a
representative to attend the meeting on their behalf. The Proxy is endclosed herewith. The completed
Proxy Form should be sent to email: secretary@jdbbank.com.la before 05 December 2025.

We hope you would devote your precious time to attend the meeting.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

[x] [
3la Swrwou
Vilay SYPHAPHONE
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Attachement

—

Attachement 1: Agenda of IDB’s Annual General Shareholders' Meeting for the year 2024;
Attachement 2: Annual report for the year 2024 of JDB;

Attachement 3: Audit report on the Financial statement of JDB for the year ended 31
December 2024;

Attachement 4: Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB for the year 2024;
Attachement 5: Proxy from;

Attachement 6: The rule of JDB’s shareholders’ Meeting;

Attachement 7: The guideline on voting;

Attachement 8: The recommendation on the document and the reference that shall be
presented when attending the meeting;

9. Attachement 9: Profile of Independent Board Member;

10. Attachement 10: Map of the meeting venue.

W o
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Remark:

1. Each shareholder can download the invitation letter and the attached files on the website of JDB:
https://www.jdbbank.com.la and on the Lao Securities Exchange's website www.lsx.com.la or to get
the invitation letter stipulated your right to attend the meeting (with QR code) at the Lao Securities
Exchange at the Level 4, Settlement and Securities Deposit Division at Phonthan Nue Village, T4 Road,
Saysettha, Vientiane Capital. Tel: +85621 454361-4 from 24 November 2025.

2. For the shareholders who shall attend and to assign the proxy, please bring 1D Card or Family Book or
Passport (For Foreign shareholders) on the meeting day to inform when registering to the meeting. All
the references are defined in the guideline to the meeting regarding the references and evidence to prove
the right of the shareholders to the meeting (The documents are attached herewith).

3. For the shareholder that shall assign proxy to attend the meeting and voting. Please fill the information
and sign on the Proxy Form. which attached herewith with full and complete information.

Contact person: Corporate Secretary:

Mr. Xayxana THAMMAVONGSONE 020 55839393
Mr. Douayang NAOTOU 020 78245354

Ms. Khanphasit KHAIPHOM 020 29994879
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Attachement 1: Agenda

Agenda

JDB's Annual General Shareholders' Meeting for the year 2024

Date of Meeting:
Meeting Venue:
Meeting Convener:

Chairperson of the Meeting:
Attendees:

09 December 2025, from 9:00 AM

6th floor Meeting Room, Joint Development Bank Public,
Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE, Chaiman of the Board of
Directors

Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE

Sharholders of JDB (Hybrid Meeting)

1 |Agenda



Attachement 1: Agenda

Agenda
JDB's Annual General Shareholders' Meeting for the year 2024
No. Content of Agenda
1 Agenda 1: Consider and approve the annual report for the year 2024 of JDB
2 Agenda 2: Consider and approve the audit report on the financial statement of JDB for
the year 2024
3 Agenda 3: Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB

2 |Agenda



Attachement 1: Agenda

Agenda
JDB's Annual General Shareholders' Meeting for the year 2024
Time Content of Agenda Reporter/Responsible
Party
VTE 08:30-09:00 | Register Secretariat
VTE 09:00-09:30 | Quorum Facilitator
VTE 09:30-09:40 | The chairman of the meeting delivers an opening | Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE
remark
VTE 09:40-10:00 | Agenda 1: Consider and approve the annual Presented by:
report for the year 2024 of JDB Mr. Sakhone
YORPHANXAY
VTE 10:00-10:20 | Agenda 2: Consider and approve the audit Managing Director
report on the financial statement of JDB for the .
year 2024 Consider and approve
VTE 10:20-10:40 | Agenda 3: Consider and approve the dividend by: . .
payment plan of JDB The shareholders meeting
through a voting process
VTE 10:40-11:00 | The chairman of the meeting delivers a closing Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE

speech of the meeting

3 |Agenda
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Joint Development Bank

faiinganlng nsuanaussudanzua
Head Quarter Location

s1autantl 82, neviy 5“]1.Iéﬁlf|, Building No 82, Lanexang Ave
Uy dinged, iag Junzyd, veasuyagagydu, Ban Hatsadee, Chanthabouly District, Vientiane Capital
glugsd P.O. Box 3187 Tmasdu Tel: 021 - 213 531, a1waou Hotline 1499 Tmazsay Fax: 021 - 213 530
Website: www.jclbhank.com.la

E-mail: info@jdbbank.la
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. D0agauiiiuzsg denmawgdzwag ddmau neuanausaviiaonzuya
thau 3ta Fuzweu
Speech of the Board of Director of Joint Development Bank
Mr. Vilay Siphaphone

. Doaoudiuesg gdruaenauing nzurausaviionzua
Ny gaasy Huuls
Speech of the Managing Director of Joint Development Bank
Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay

. 2yudaunaujulosme

Summary of Financial Information

. SEWAUAMIAU NZUINIVSIULONEUA
Board of Directors of Joint Development Bank

. Q2UEHU2LNIU NSUIQIUS LW EZUA

Board of Management of Joint Development Bank

. fizuzfwenIy Suasgudnau

Strategy and Governance Committee

. azusNwENIY UAMIVAIIWLSY

Risk Management Committee

. fizuzNIUENIY NOOSEIU
Internal Inspection Committee

- 1a9$a980d Uzdall 2024
Organization Chart 2024

10. Goazgunauduiuyaziio Jzdad 2024
Business Operation Summary 2024

1. agnyauisisuima Uzdad 2024 2agnzuraausauiionzya
Activities of Joint Development Bank 2024

12. Uaavggauaginnanssudasgzygse
Report of Independent Auditor (Lao and English)

13. muagddnaunagy
Service Units

13. TJsluduu=9al 2024
Promotion 2024
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M3 e Fuswou
Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE

demnangazwadAman nsuagausauiionsua

Chairman, Board of Directors
Joint Development Bank

Jadznauaaruiu
Speech of Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE

Chairman, Board of Directors Joint Development Bank
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It was a great honor to be entrusted by the Shareholding President with the position of Chairman
of the Board of Directors at the Joint Development Bank, a fully Lao-owned commercial bank. Amid
global economic uncertainties, Laos has undertaken a series of economic reforms in 2024 to strengthen

its domestic economy. Many sectors have adopted stricter policies, particularly in the area of foreign

currency management, where new regulations are now being enforced more rigorously.
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2024 was also designated as the “Visit Laos
Year,” and lLaos was also the host of ASEAN Summit.
These positively helped Lao economy grow by 4.2% per
a target set forth by the National Assembly of Lao PDR.
Inflation gradually decreased while foreign reserves
were gradually strengthened, as well as growth in
tourism and foreign investment. The Lao government
has made effective efforts to tackle inflation and attract
investments. The economy of the Lao PDR gradually
recovered, creating favorable conditions to support the
successful operation of the Joint Development Bank.

|, together with my fellow executives at all
levels, have strived to do everything we can to transform
Joint Development Bank into a strong and profitable
institution in order to meet our KPls in several domains
and foster teamwork, professionalism, transparency.
Our operation is in compliance with all laws and regula-
tions, ensuring mutual interests and and auditability in
order to achieve joint success, allowing the loint Devel-
opment Bank to satisfactorily meet prescribed indicts.

The loint Development Bank has decided to
launch initial public offerings (IPQO), opening up to both
domestic and international investors. Being listed on the
Lao Securities Exchange has also built trust among our
clients and general investors. To become a listed firm,
IDB must meet international standards and comply with
the requirements set by the Lao Securities Commission
Office and Lao Securities Exchange. This move has also
allowed customers, IDB’s employees, and general public
to be parts and become owners of JDB. Moreover, loint
Development Bank has modernized its domestic and
international payment system - ensuring security and
regularly disseminating information to the public - which
led to a gradual increase of loint Development Bank’s

service users.

tinggal Saweda 2eoslglfiusuuanauda tn-Aa, Innazfiowasly gaz daguzing, gndazegnzuaaay
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In closing, | would like to wish our Party-State’s leaders, local and foreign business people,
our Joint Development Bank'’s customers, the management, and all employees nationwide good health,

longevity, and successes in your noble tasks and happiness in your personal life.
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Chairman, Board of Directors loint Development Bank
Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE
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Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY
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Managing Director
Joint Development Bank

dauznauHactuy
Speech of Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY

Managing Director of Joint Development Bank
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In 2024, the economy of Lao PDR was on an upward trend due to Visit Laos Year campaign and the
role as host of the ASEAN Summit. These positively helped improve the domestic economy. However, facing
with the global economic uncertainties, along with geo-political conflicts and wars amaong the world’s major
economies has led to a rise in inflation rate. Lao economy grew by 4.2% per a target set forth by the National
Assembly of Lao PDR.
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In line with the financial macroeconomic
policy and a national agenda on addressing econom-
ic-financial difficulties whilst following a strategy, an
annual business operation plan, as well as striving to
achieve KPls in revenue and profit for the Joint Devel-
opment Bank or JDB, in 2024, JDB has accomplished
many achievements in the past year. For example, as of
31st December 2024, the gross asset value increased
by 30%; funding sources rose by 27%, successfully
meeting the 2024 target;
achieved 171% of the target, and earning before tax
(EBT) reached 969 billion Lao Kip, representing a 55%

increase compared to the previous year. This growth

credit disbursements

has also led to a 20% increase in the customer base,
reflecting the JDB’s growing popularity and continuous
trust in its services.

2024 fiscal year marked JBD’s outperfor-
mances beyond its targets, satisfying the all manage-
ment while every staff in JDB has worked towards
achieving their goals and objectives to become “a
modern and internationally connected bank”.

This enabled JDB to become a modern bank
that meets international standards. Our main mission is
to focus on improving and developing our services to
catch up with new changes, strengthening financial
strength, developing modern IT systems and technolo-
gies into our services, and creating an accurate, clear,
transparent, and swift information system as well as
ensuring security and meeting international standards.
In addition, we also emphasize developing our person-
nel in all areas to become skilled professionals in bank-
ing services, supporting the bank’s overall development
and creating customer satisfaction, while maximizing
sustainable benefits for the organization. IDB also
provides seamless payment platforms such as Deep-
linking Payment, Dynamic QR, Card Payment Gateway
(Visa, Master Card, and UnionPay), AliPay and UPI QR,
APl QR merchant. Moreover, JDB is also a settlement
bank for its business partners, particularly in the

E-Commerce and Fintech sectors.
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On behalf of our management and entire staff, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all of our

valued customers for choosing our bank. We wish you continued success in your endeavors,

good health, and prosperity.
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Managing Director Joint Development Bank
Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY
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~ Summary of Financial Information

Financial Highlight

Mio LAK
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Asset 2,889,413 3,632,186 5,018,043 7,679,049 10,970,251 17,649,864 26,083,248 33,144,411
Deposit to customers 2,356,742 2,925,232 4,240,095 5,945,355 8,727,580 14,140,149 21,867,163 27,476,248
Loan 1,913,425 2,190,461 3,314,709 4,595,516 7,566,039 11,977,808 16,637,986 20,548,354
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2019 2020 2021

M Asset M Deposit to customers

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Revenues 308,455 278,890 356,325 505,037 726,306 1,308,655 2,047,797 3,050,320
Expenses 302,177 271,052 316,663 419,353 592,116 1,027,226 1,537,494 2,309,059
Profit 6,278 7,838 39,662 85,684 134,190 281,429 510,303 741,261
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3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
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S=wWalATINU NZUINWSIVUONSUA
Board of Directors of The Joint Development Bank

Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE

dzmiuazwadinag
Chairman of The Board of Directors

J M 3ia Fu=wou

| nay wag wavszlvy gne=dy nay daa9u Hulg

Mr. Phonesamay SOUKHAPHON h Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY

| gaqdznan Azwirddna
Vice Executive Board Member

AzuABn A=ualinay
Executive Board Member

|| mau Sauaa DesFudn .| My duM=waY UMY
Mr. Vilandeth VAYASOMSAK Mr. Chanthaphone CHANTHAVONG
AzuaBn azwadinay | Azuadn dzwrddman

i Executive Board Member | Executive Board Member

- haw dady Asudun=3y
I Mr. Khamsing SONESINNAVONG

#zuadn AzwidFeau
| Executive Board Member
%‘*w

nau yugu dgzmda
Mr. Bounsoum SYSAVAT

gzua8n dAzwnddmnan
Executive Board Member
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Board of Management of the Joint Development Bank

Ny 9999y SV

Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY

wiwounwing
Managing Director

My Hadg dauduusiy
Mr. Khamsing SONESINNAVONG

s39EdwavnWing
Deputy Director

fau Jautan Da=8udn
Mr. Vilandeth VAYASOMSAK

s99tidauosnulug
Deputy Director

My Jugsus d9mady
Mr. Chansana SINGHAVONG

s29@duoaniuing
Deputy Director

naw aag €9 Ml dumswal M9
Mr. Khamsu YANG Mr. Chanthaphone CHANTHAVONG
sajiidauaonauing sagtisausanaulnd
\ Deputy Director Deputy Director
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azusHaucnay §uagsgianay
Stretegy & Governance Committee

:i| NIy Funzwou Iunz3g
5| Mr. Chanthaphone CHANTHAVONG

dzmaunzyzauas iy
Head of Committee

hau daucan fawsdudn
Mr. Vilandeth VAYASOMSAK
saqUzmauazIENANENAVALAS0AM AL

Deputy Head of Committee

RV TR ERTEITIERY)
Mr. Xay BOULOMMAVONG

nayznay
Committee Member
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Mr. Phonesamay SOUKHAPHON
fauznau
Committee Member

nau Iggzus hauzs9s91
Mr. Xaysana THAMMAVONGSONE

flaugnau
Committee Member
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Risk Management Committee

Ny 6989 Fauduu=3q
Mr. Khamsing SONESINNAVONG

YrmIuazuEhalENIUNIng sy
Head of Committee

may Augzus §9mad9 hau 3la Fuwzwou
Mr. Chansana SINGHAVONG Mr. Vilay SIPHAPHONE
saquzm fNauznauiSnivasusgy fiauznau
Deputy Head of Committee 1 Committee Member

mau 99ily A52039
Mr. Sakhone YORPHANXAY Ms. Arnon LIEYLENG
fnayznay fiauznau
Committee Member p Committee Member
; 8

0y gaa090 dunlg

gaaenuu=al 2024
ANNUAL REPORT 2024



azi=NIU=ZNIY NIOI9U

Internal Inspection Committee

nay yugu dgsmda
Mr. Bounsoum SYSAVAT

UzinauazueEn

Head of Committee

u

may 3ga dodsz90

N9l AUNSWIY DUMEDq
Mr. Visoud BUASISAARD Mr. Chanthaphone CHANTHAVONG
saqUzmavazyEnauENIUNana sy fiauznay
| Deputy Head of Committee Committee Member

w9y 3usaa loasdudn

Mmau Uq9 asussmdU Hzatmu
Mr. Vilandeth VAYASOMSAK Ms. Khonesavan VISATHEP
nayznay
| Committee Member
\

fiausnauy

Committee Member
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Global economic outlook in 2024 remains
with uncertainty, with an impact by several factors that
can be categorized as follows:

1. Economic Factor:

- Inflation: increasing price of goods and services
has an impact on consumer’s purchasing power
and business investment

- Interest rate: policy changes to increase deposit
interest rate has an impact on financial expenses
for loan customers and investment

- Economic growth: changes in declining GDP (gross
domestic product) outlook indicates global
economic outlook

-  World trade: trade policies, agreements, and inter-
national trade conflicts

- Labor market: unemployment rate, changes in
wages, and skills efficiency

2. Geographic Factor:

- Political conflicts: wars, political conflicts and insta-
bility in several regions

- Government policies: fiscal policy and other

policies affecting the economy

- International relations: diplomatic relations and

international cooperation
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3. Technological Factor:

- Technology advancement: changes in technology

have an impact on production, employment, and

types of business operations.

Digitalization: growth in digital economy, e-com-

merce, and infermation and communications tech-

nology.

4, Natural and Environmental Factor:

- Climate changes: natural disasters and climate

changes and the impact on agriculture and industry

sectors.

Natural resources: availability of natural resources,

such as oil, natural gas, and minerals.

5. Social Factor:

- Population: changes in population, such as aging

population and labor migration.

Income inequality: discrepancy of incomes among

different groups of people in the saciety .

Pandemics: communicable diseases pandemic has

a severe impact on global economy, such as

COVID-19 variants, and while the symptoms are not

severe, the disease still has an effect on workers’

health.
These

correlated. Changes in one factor may have an impact

factors are interconnected and
on another factors and on the overall economy.

. Economic Growth Outlook

- The World Bank: global economic growth is project-
ed to be 2.4% in 2024, declining from 3.1% in 2023.
International Monetary Fund (IMF): global econom-
ic growth is projected to be 2.7% in 2024, declining
from 3.2% in 2023. Factors affecting global econo-
my include geopolitical conflicts with war in Ukraine
continuing to have an impact on global economy in

terms of energy prices, food supply chain, and

higher prices of goods.
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Macroeconomy of Lao PDR in 2024 — lao
PDR still faces several aspects of ecanomic difficulties
including financial-monetary  situation, foreign
exchange rate, inflation rate, shortage of labor, fiscal
deficit, and public debt. Tourism and investment in
energy sector are key supporting factors and drivers of
economic growth. The government has put in place
maore stringent monetary and fiscal policies, including
limiting foreign currency exchange, resulting in a grad-
ual recovery of macroeconomic stability.

2.1. Inflation Rate:

Inflation rate in 09/2024 remains at 21.7%
which increased at a a slower pace for 2 consecutive
months in 12 months. Category of goods with higher
inflation rate includes healthcare and medicine, which
increased by 34%, followed by accommadation, water,
electricity and cooking gas at 32.9%; restaurants and
hotels increased by 30.9%, home appliances by 29.3%,
education by 29.3%. As for food and non-alcoholic
beverages, which account for highest consumption
among all category of goods, have seen a rise by
21.1%. The slower pace of inflation results from a
current lower pressure on foreign exchange rate, less
fluctuations of foreign exchange rate, and a declining
price of imported goods including declining oil pricesin
the global market. Nevertheless, domestic production
remains weak, coupled with effects of climate changes
including high rainfalls and floods, resulting in insuffi-
cient supply which is unable to meet the demand.
Consequently, prices of several goods have increased.
2.2.Foreign exchange rate:

In Quarter 03/2024, the Bank of Lao PDR
(BOL) continues to set the scope for exchange rate
from LAK to USD +/- 7.50% of BOL reference rate. The
difference between the buying rate and selling rate
shall not exceed 2% for LAK to USD, THB, CNY, EUR, JPY,
and other currencies. Inflation Rate Report of Septem-
ber 2024 (Lao Statistics Bureau). Selling rate not
exceeding 5% far currency exchange between LAK and
other currencies. LAK-USD and LAK-THB exchange
rates continue to increase.
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Foreign exchange rate in the banking system
for USD on 9-month average is 21,398 LAK/USD,
increased by 18% compared to the same period in the
previous year (from 18,070 LAK/USD), while parallel
rate averaged at 24,229 LAK/USD, increased by 28%
from the same period (from 18,945 LAK/USD). For THB
exchange rate, the banking system averaged at 663
LAK/THB, increased by 23% (from 539 LAK/THB) com-
pared against the same period, while the parallel rate
averaged at 677 LAK/THB, increased about 22% (from
522 LAK/THB) (data from the Bank of Lao PDR, foreign
economic statistics). LAK depreciation continues to
remain due to internal and external factors. Neverthe-
less, in 2024, BOL will continue to impose monetary
policies in a more stringent direction and implement
market-driven foreign exchange policies with a strict
supervision by the Government.

. Challenges faced by commercial banks in Laos

Commercial banks in Laos face a number of
challenges amidst economic instability and global
market fluctuation, which can be summarized as
follows:

- Credit risks: asset quality of commercial banks is
affected by an economic slowdown which has an
impact on several businesses, hence reducing the
customer’s loan repayment capacity, and in turns
resulting in higher number of non-performing
loans,

- Competition: competition in the banking sector in
Laos is increasing, with an increased number of
domestic and foreign commercial banks operating
in the country. This competition puts pressure on
banks to improve their services and develop new
products in order to attract and maintain their
customer base.

- Technology: rapid technological changes required
banks to invest in new technology to efficiently
serve their customers and meet the ongoing
demand by the customers. Investment in this tech-
nology is of high cost and requires high manage-
ment expertise.

- Economic growth: the economy of Lao PDR still
sees potential growth especially from infrastruc-
ture investment and development in the tourism
sector. This growth can provide opportunities to
banks to expand their own customer base and
generate additional revenue. Commercial banks in
Laos face a number of challenges, yet there is still
an opportunity for growth and development.
Banks can adapt to changing environment, can be

efficient in risk management, and can be success-
ful in the Lao market.



4 .1- X ."‘u*f
\ .AJ -.'.1.%;"-;;!";’_‘*.“-
_gl,t,,_,_a;m&:—- 31 - T Y

T

4

Uz unL R AL
FEDe e Pent S«

.u:?'
mﬂ

- o
35 )

Jlanalaguandn ||

', S0 BYD Seagull |

III naudadiunaciio esjnzuanausoutionzua Jedadl 2024 \ Business Operations of JDB in 2024

nsuInIusaulanzya § JDB  Wunzuanay

tanz3uanoiilasunoudduaangnda  loelddnggnaw
Udnay Thdvgniivssiolduinnznaugafiv  fidaaaau
dognauesgansdalufindanzuaeizdoasiiu EAEETTEY
aoausznon-szuaelianda dosazdutinluladiifiuss
Tou, Sadudsinealdiununcregavaaifiuingzsmene
Golutisudiy uaz Wunaudznsudaviigadulunautions
Uadzinagan.

1DB tdinaudsusdgbaunaudidmay uas nay
tdnaugndinesgdu lhunamwuasiivazuaunaufiaiges)
980 uwoazlasz $ald JDB Inautdulmozzmeae
Gadlagdgadly, (39tdEals JDB HBugautumaaday 18
Yuygnauddnauguudivdgasy (Haoausazaandsglalin
nzuaeizdonstiuiimogmas tﬁmsaﬁﬁmmﬁmﬁmﬂuéu
wiy navddnaveandu, naunsufu uaz naulsuu,
naugaasszgay wrely uaz aaquzina 39wl 2024 (D
Uiilaoaumagdadugdagdy eoqunsuraausoutio nzua
Gussududagly 35 T.

Ofigzifivgzmegnaudagdy JDB dussu 35 O

18308udlagdgimd  waz 9adgnay  lagnauunsa
t8agouesy way  tensliy  wsddn, UYzmawefisy

nzyanausautionzya, azuznaudatindaunyg sud a9,
azuzdmnaunzuIaay ufg SUU a19, Juaagnéa uas g
éam@azﬁm’lﬁmmn sd v, (83u, é‘i;JaJ, éjﬁj, Sqnzlu,
vaalgy, masauay uaz vstmaln, navdadfigsdu
s

gemoqwégl  wlulasausursasaudadivgdagdy

Wunavgzguiunuandunazino Jedad 2024 naz
guiflugsyeg IDB Aussu 35 ¥ dildu=dududacia Ty
nau@unzuanaubuuuy  daunaudimnaunazfiagnie)i
fluselou, Wunzuagau Digital Banking #iéudialan

gauaadafigoanaulé uaz JDB 1Gdagnaudsuudgle)ii

Uamenuu=l 2024
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Joint Development Bank or IDB is a reputa-
ble Lao private bank well-known by customers, as the

bank places high importance on service that is

. up-to-date and of international standard while mainly

focuses on catering to the needs of its customers.
Product development is key to facilitate customers
with modern technology and system, creating mutual
benefits for all parties to grow together, while playing a
crucial role in contributing to national development.

JDB has gone through periodical changes in
terms of management and customer service to be
mare in line with the current context, resulting in JDB’s
remarkable and constant growth, with key achieve-
ments in several aspects. JDB also improved its full,
comprehensive service to be more timely and conve-
nient, while developing a variety of products to serve
its customers, including services on deposit, withdraw-
al, money transfer, and domestic and oversea
payments. 2024 marks a significant milestone for JDB
with the 35th anniversary of the establishment of the
Jaint Development Bank.

JDB’s 35th anniversary ceremony is a grand
celebration with the presence of Mr. Ekaphanh Phaphi-
thack, Chairman of the Shareholders’ Committee of
the Joint Development Bank, with honorable guests
from the Management of Bank of Lao PDR, high-level
Party and Government officials, customers and
business partners from the Republic of China, Europe,
lapan, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, Vietnam and
Thailand. This celebration marks a great milestone
with the review of 2024 business operations and to
commemorate 35 years of great success in becoming a
role-model bank in business management in the new,
modern era with its digital banking service accessible
by people from all around the world. JDB has seen a
its

remarkable change with constant growth in

business turnover.
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At the ceremony, JDB also launched a new
service called “JDB Biometric” which will make it more
convenient for customers to open their deposit
accounts safely and securely, where customers both
in-country and abroad can open deposit accounts by
themselves without having to physically come in to the
bank.

In addition, the ceremaony also offers several
giveaways to JDB customers with prizes include gold
weight at 1 baht (15 prizes), 5 BYD electric vehicles, 1
Toyota Fortuner, and other prizes. Throughout its
journey of 35 years, IDB is trusted by customers from
all walks of life and has witnessed a stable and
constant growth. JDB is outstanding in its remarkable
business turnover throughout decades, highlighting
the strength and resilience of the board and the man-
agement, and excellent services provided by JDB staff
a reflection of trust and confidence fram all customers
who have always supported IDB.

JDB has a network of service units that
covers nationwide with a total of 64 service units
currently in order to provide services to customers
comprehensively. IDB is the first private bank in Lao
PDR, with business management in the new, modern
era with great success, offering digital banking accessi-
ble by people from all around the world, with interna-
tional connection, becoming a central Payment Hub.
IDB has created a new, remarkable change among
banks in Lao PDR with a constant growth in business
turnover. This showcases the trust and confidence
given by customers who have always provided their
ongoing supports.

Currently, JDB witnesses a constant growth
and in 2024, JDB has made remarkable progress and
achievements in one year. As of 31 December 2024,
IDB'’s total asset has increased by 30%; fund sources
increased by 27% meeting the planned target for 2024;

credit lending achieving 171% of the planned target,
and profit before tax at 969 billion LAK which
increased by 55% from the previous year.
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customer base, which reaffirms an increasing popular-
ity among customers who prefer to use services
provided by IDB.

JDB’s business operations and turnover
indicate key achievements in several aspects including
fund sources, use of funds, credit lending, domestic
and international money transfers, electronic services,
services through digital banking platform, and e-com-
merce. |DB foresees potential business growth and
future opportunities.

5-year Plan Phase Il from
2025-2029: IDB will implement the plan in order to

achieve targets and goals and 3 IDB Missions in the

Strategic

period of 5 years.

In the 2024 annual review meeting, certifi-
cates of haonor were presented to 4 IDB employees
and management to acknowledge their great contri-
butions in the development of IDB from the day the
bank first operated to the presence, over the course of
35 years. Award plaques and certificates of apprecia-
tion were also presented to individuals and groups
among JDB service units with outstanding perfor-
mance in customer services in order to commemao-
rate, acknowledge and motivate those with excellent
performance in different aspects and their key contri-
butions to the Joint Development Bank.

In the 2024 annual
speech was given by Mr. Ekaphanh Phaphithack, Chair-

review meeting, a

man of the Shareholders’ Committee of the Jaint
Development Bank, who congratulated and praised
the board of directors and all staff for contributing all
of their efforts and knowledge while fulfilling their
duties with great accountability, resulting in JDB's
constant growth, leapfrog, and being reputable and

trustworthy by domestic and foreign customers.
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Vision: “the Joint Development Bank thrives to build
new innovations to deliver excellent services, as a
modern commercial bank progressing toward inter-
national [level]”

with an important mission to become the

forefront of commercial banks in Lao PDR, as a com-
mercial bank with modern digital banking, and becom-
ing ASEAN and international payment hub.
During the course of its business operations, the Joint
Development Bank has provided credit lending to
promote SMEs in several sectors including agriculture,
industry, trade, infrastructure construction, services,
transports, and other sectors, covering small, medium
and large enterprises.

Amidst the current global rapid changes
specifically technological changes, this has an impact
on customers’ behaviors in conducting financial trans-
actions, which are now shifting more towards digital
banking platform through the banking system, togeth-
er with the current economic situation with its
inter-connectivity and boundless connection.

JDB is a leading commercial bankin Lao PDR,
is a modern commercial bank, with outstanding and
unigque services.

JDB offers Digital Banking Platform services
to customers, which include:

1. IDB Yes Mobile Banking Application — Mobile Bank-
ing is one of the outstanding services in order to facili-
tate financial transaction in a convenient, fast, modern
and secured manner. Registration can be done by
personal individual accounts or legal entity accounts,
allowing financial transactions to be conducted with-
out having to physically come into the bank. This
includes money transfer, payments for water, electrici-
ty,
payment,
payment of road tax fees, land tax fees, tax payments,

internet fees, mobile-phone top-up, leasing

wallet top-up, air ticket reservations,

oversea money transfer via mobile MoneyGram,
buy-sell fareign currency on LFX,



szunurgsaudaluu=imnalnegay Prompt Pay QR
naz gxenudredaudaiiaolanegay UnionPay QR.
2. 1DB Online Banking @udanaudadvdziwa
s dagnaauszoaniunauidonazna
nauiy 12u: lsuduwasly gaz aaquzme, S9asa9
gamaazyuslun, aazeansy, wandsuuna LFX,
Windneifuidsuwsiingay, noaiq Statement ju
Ban uaz Su9.

lulaqly JDB Ihezmeaanausaud diu
Dunamzua aaugfaguzime gwaasulfy uaz oy
Fuluaaguzimaléimas noa 110 Uzmadiolan.

JDB Wumnzuraavnazfadivazlo luduiu
Bug 299 auu avro Didsqglisegsuniusaazazsng
Gos Seamless Payment Platform ufivudy:
Deeplinking Payment, Dynamic QR, Card
Payment Gateway (Visa, Master Card, and
UnionPay), AliPay waz UPI QR, APl QR
mechant uaz JDB &9y Settlement Bank
Zrazazanglfiungsovyaziiozsy JDB logsziwaz
gounuyazia E-commerce az Fintech.

JDB  139t0aaln
Uznaugougoufisdydulugutuudagy Bu: JDB
fisufinogdladialoy “Yyobudaqusinnzhalol s
Fquauddnauiiduda” “Wunzviauyazfin fuse
T finogsafy” Goswrazfintidadulunauiunza
aaunazin luunaoiaesy sUU a9, Wunzyaaay
nasAafidiuszlodau Digital Banking uaz dugy
n1929azgz899 U985y Kaz gafiy.

ansamaszia

Hltaoaudadulunay

” o

QR scan for payment in shops in Thailand via Prompt
Pay QR, and payment in shops around the world via
UnionPay QR.

2. JDB Online Banking is a service provide to business
customers to facilitate financial transactions, such as
domestic and international money transfers, payment
for public utilities fees, tax payments, foreign exchange
on LFX, payrolls for employees, checking bank state-
ment for deposit account, and others.

Currently DB has expanded its cooperation
with banks in other countries, allowing [customers to]
receive and transfer money overseas in over 110 coun-
tries globally.

JDB is a modern commercial bank at the
forefront in Lao PDR, with different instruments to
accommodate payments with Seamless Payment
Platform, including Deeplinking Payment, Dynamic QR,
Card Payment Gateway (Visa, MasterCard, and Union-
Pay), AliPay and UPI QR, APl QR merchant. JDB is also a
settlement bank to for our business partners specifi-
cally e-commerce and Fintech businesses.

JDB always places an importance on contrib-
uting and giving back to the society in different ways.
IDB stands ready to step toward the new vision:
“thrives to build new innovations to deliver excellent
services, as a modern commercial bank progressing
toward international [level]”, with an important
mission to become the forefront of commercial banks
in Lao PDR, as a commercial bank with modern digital
banking, and becoming ASEAN and international

payment hub.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The shareholder of Joint Development Bank Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Joint Development Bank Limited (“the Bank”) for the year ended
31 December 2024 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant regulations and
notifications of the Bank of Lao People’'s Democratic Republic and the accounting policies described in
Note 2 to the financial statements.

What we have audited
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

the statement of income for the year then ended:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024:

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended: and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
aur opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of accounting and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Nate 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Bank's accounting policies described in Note 2
to the financial statements. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our report is intended solely for the Bank and the Bank of Lao Peopie’'s Democratic Republic and should
not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Bank and the Bank of Lac People’'s Democratic
Republic. Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.
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Respaonsibilities of the directors of the Bank for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of the Bank of Lao People’'s
Democratic Republic and the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements thal are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may invaolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to maodify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up o the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern,
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited

Partner

Vientiane Captal, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expenses

NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Net (loss)/gain from securities investment
Net gain from dealing in foreign currencies

NET OPERATING INCOME

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other operating income
Administration expenses

Payroll and other staff costs

Other administrative expenses

Depreciation and amortization charges
Other operating expenses

Net provision for non-performing loans
charged to expense

TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Current profit tax

PROFIT AFTER TAX

7

8
9

19, 20, 21
10

1,804,803,787 975
(1,436,263,848,870)

1,334,107,258,549
(1,024,785,846,376)

468,639,939,005

309,321,412,173

761,638,366,564
(126,085,555,181)

41,005,419,630

279,351,819,752

484,078,425,685
(67,755,220,241)

17,231,179,080
200,856,857,250

1,424,549,988,770

943,732,653,927

63,420,650,500
(368,280,971,906)
(205,810,920,900)
(162,470,051,008)

(51,213,897,832)
(148,654,689,705)

1,301,356,224

11,624,419,303
(262,738,119,161)
(148,936,608,736)
(103,801,508,425)

(38,974,810,764)
(59,240,256,133)

(10,342,289,448)

921,122,437,051

593,961,597,814

(179,861,488,253)

(83,658,926,464)

741,260,968,798

510,302,671,350

Prepared by:

s

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

soudionena
950

Mr—Sakbere Yorphanxay

General Direclor

Vientiane, Lac PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

ASSETS

Cash and accounts with the BOL
1. Cash on hand

2. Balance with BOL

3. Gold and other metal precious

Due from other banks
1. Demand deposits
2. Term deposils

3. Saving deposits

Investment in securities

1. Available-for-sale securities
2. Held-to-maturity securities

Loans to customers, net of

specific provision for credit activities

Interest in joint ventures

Fixed assets

1. Construction in progress and fixed assets in

transit
2. Intangible fixed assets
3. Tangible fixed assets
4. Right of use asset

Other assets
1. Accrued interest receivable
2. Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathe

7,216,139,178,457
2,476,960,951,761
4,557,379,428,169

181,798,798,527

1,298,605,293,304
1,218,141,024,837
73,316,000,000
6,148,268,467

997,467,955,022

2,350,000,000
985,117 955,022

20,548,354,152,336

2,697,780,000
449,371,042,673

7,.816,418.649
234,890,687 441
186,095,149,968
20,568,776,615

2,631,775,971,915
222,897,296,211
2,408,878,675,704

5,148,769,142,980
1,707,663,966,883
3.441,105,176,097

1,108,809,783,510
741,506,345,523
183,800,000,000
171,503,437,987

716,785,591,658
2,350,000,000
714,435,591,658

16,637,986,670,787

1,687,780,000
345,165,133,576

7,886,831,879
185,781,600,728
135,422,184,878
16,074,516,091

2,126,034,768,979
219,603,991,355
1,906,430.777,624

33,144,411,373,707

26,083,247,771,490

Soulnnyy
3910
JOINT DEVELOPMENT
&

/

Mr_Sakhone Yorphanxay

Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Due to other banks and financial institutions
1. Demand and saving deposits

2. Term deposits

3. Barrowings

4, Other payables

Due to customers
1. Demand and saving deposits
2. Term deposits

Qther liabilities
1. Accrued interests payable
2. Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Share capital
. Regulatory reserve fund
. General reserve fund
. Beneral provision for credit activities
Provision for unrecoverable assets
. Unrealized gain/(loss) from gold revaluation

7. Retained earnings
TOTAL CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Prepared by:

2,630,625,135,420
214,659,044,373
1,360,133,700,000
1,055,809,420,000
22,971,047

27,476,247,710,282
7,062,532 146,326
20,413,715,563,956

1,357,960,908,399
924,445,9186,347
432,514,992,052.00

2,060,772,476,184
168,694,398,572
543,718,700,000
1,348,310,000,000
49,377,612

21,867,163,162,279
5,094,280,620,618
16,772,872,541,661

935,037,177,116
700,874,155,002
234,163,022,114

31,464,833,754,101

24,862,972,815,579

674,666,100,000
73,940,550,897
95,094,307,105
91,562,389,701
94,029,775,080

(10,884,711,473)

661,279,208,296

474,668,100,000
47 225,488,634
68,379,244,842
81,649,291,641
94,029,775,080

454,325,055,714

1,679,677,619,606

1,220,274,955,911

33,144,411,373,707

26,083,247,771,490

somioneyn
910 *
\JOINT DEVELOPMENT
1‘%@ BANK é“
Y _maa oy
r-Sakhdne Yorphanxay
General Director

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Provision for General
unrecoverable provision for Regulatory General
Share capital asset credit activities reserve fund reserve fund  Retained earnings
LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK

Opening balance at 1 January 2023 444,666,100,000 94,029,775,080 58,237,986,413 31,030,555,696 19,794,446,027 235,531,177,260 883,290,040,476
Paid up 30,000,000,000 ~ 2 2 - - 30,000,000,000
Apprariated-legal reserve - - 16,164,932,938 - (16,184 932 938) o
General reserve fund - - - 16,194,932,938 (16,194,932 838) &
Dividend paid : ] - - (259,118,527.020) (258,118,927,020)

Net general provisian for credit activities during
the year 23,411,305,228 - - 23,411,305,228

Reverse reserve for tax penalty paid : 32,388,865,877 = 32,389,865,877
Net profit for the year - 510,302,671,350 510,302,671,350

on

nnupLe

Closing balance at 31 December 2023 474,668,100,000 94,029,775,080 81,649,291,641 47,225,488,634 68,379,244,842 454,325,055,.714 1,220,274,955,911

$20Z LHO4TH TVNNNY

¥Z0Z QLE

Prepared by:
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Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep r. Sakhone Yorphanxay
Head of Finance and Accounting department General Director

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Opening balance at 1 January 2024
Paid up
Approrialed-legal reserve
General reserve fund
Dividend paid
Unrealized loss on available for sale - Gold
Met general provision for credit activities
during the year
Net profit for the year

Closing balance at 31 December 2024

Prepared by:

ﬂ,‘

Share capital
LAK

Provision for
unrecoverahle
asset

LAK

Unrealized
gainl(loss) from
gold revaluation

LAK

General

provision for

credit activities
LAK

Regulatory
reserve fund
LAK

Genaral
reserve fund
LAK

Retained eamings
LAK

474,666,100,000
200,000,000,000

94,029,775,080

(10,994,711,473)

81,649,291,641

9,913,098,060

47,225,488,634

26,715,062,263

68,379,244,842
26,715,062,263

454,325,055,714

(26,715 062, 263)
(26,715,062 263)
(460,876,691 690}

741,260,9€8,798

1,220,274,955,911
200,000,000,000

{480,876,691,8690)
{10,094,711,473)

9,913,098,060.00
741,260,968,798.00

674,666,100,000

84,029,775,080

(10,994,711,473)

81,562,389,701

73,940,550,897

95,084,307,105

661,279,208,296

1,679,677,619,608

Ms. Khenesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao POR
Date; 21 May 2025

ne Yorphanxay
Director




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit/(loss) before tax 921,122,437,051 593,961,597,814

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amcrtization expenses 19, 20, 21 51,213,897,832 45,772,010,832
Wirte-off and disposal 18,19, 20 7.799,416,893 “
Net provision expense 16.3 63,681,997 656 9,845,178 429
Interest income 3 {1,904,903,787,975) (1,334,107,258,549)
Interest expense 3 1,436,283 848,870 1,024,785,846,376

Cash flows from operating profit before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 575,/177,810,427 340,257,374,902

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Balances with other banks (265,319,272 411) (B65,564,138,704)
Loans to customers (3,964,137,481,145) (4,670,022,839,754)
Other assets (502,447,893,080) (1,114,378,509,313)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due to BOL and other banks 891,448,238,236 71,171,754,208
Due to customers 5,609,084 548,003 7.727,013,823,803
Other liabilities 56,407,638,579 159,094,841,488

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Profit tax paid during the year 2,410,213,584,609 1,647,572,306,630

Interest Paid (1,212,692,087,625) (820,556,960,695)
Interest Received 1,801.610,483,118 1,332,210,517,150
Profit tax paid (85,004,808,082) (76,965,587.808)

Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities 3,014,127,174,040 2,082,260,275,277

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for construction in progress and tangible

assets (27,224 778,252) (7,790,233,379)
Payment far intangible assets (58,227,505,005) (21,771,898,456)
Pyament for tangible assets (69,092,418,665) (44,923 676,680)
Proceed from disposals of assets - 426,405,604
Pyament for right of use assets (8,674,521,800) (10,146,016,686)
Payment from investment in financial investment - hold

to maturity (1,297,653,526,153) (233,165,140,000)
Proceed from investment in financial investment - hcld

to maturity 1,016,971,162,789 34,459,605,000
Payment from investment in financial investment - Gold
and other metal precious (192,793,510,000)

Payment for associates and jeint ventures investments (1.000,000,000)

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities ———{637,695,097,186) (282,910,960,607)

ooy

>
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Ms. Khanesavanh Vixathep Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay
Head of Finance and Accounting department General Director

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

Uaaequu=nt 2024
ANNUAL REPORT 2024




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of dividend
Payment for borrowing with BoL

Proceeds from borrowing with BoL
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash investing activities

Paid dividend by offsetting against receivable of
shareholders for issuance of share capital and income tax
for dividends

Prepared by:

;Z/

s

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025
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(232,789,022,521)
(435,155,000,000)
113,559,420,000

(203,207,034,318)
41,915,000,000.00

(554,384.602,521)

(245,122,034,318)

1,822,047,474,333

4,926,927,017,468

1,554,227,280,352

3,372,699,737,116

6,748,974,491,801

4,926,927,017,468

248,087,662,169.00

lu,li
/ feuanay
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55,911,892,702

Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay
General Director




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Joint Development Bank Limited (“the Bank”) is a limited liability bank incorporated and registered
in Lac PDR.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide banking services including mobilizing and
receiving short-term, medium-term, and long-term deposits from organisations and individuals;
making short-term, medium-term, and long-term loans to organisations and individuals based on
the nature and capability of the Bank’s resources of capital, foreign exchange transactions; and
providing other banking services allowed by Bank of Lao PDR (Bol).

The Bank has the Certificate of Membership of Deposit Protection Office (DPQO), Bank of Lao PDR.
Therefore, the deposit from customer is guaranteed by DPO.

The Head Office of the Bank is located at No. 82, Lane Xang Road, Vientiane, Lac PDR. As of
31 December 2024, the Bank has one Head Office, sixty-two service units.

The Bank plans to list itself at the Lao Securities Exchange. As at the date of this report, the
pracess of changed its status from a limited company to a public company is completed (Note 31)
and the listing are still in progress.

The financial information was authorised for issue by the Bank’'s management on 21 May 2025.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below.

21 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Bank’s accounting
policies as described in the notes to the financial statements and the relevant Bol regulations
and notifications. The accounting principles applied may differ from generally accepted
accounting principles adopted in other countries and jurisdictions. The accompanying
financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and financial
performance in accordance with other jurisdictions.

Consequently, these financial statements are addressed only to those who are informed
about the Bank’s accounting policies and the relevant accounting regulations and
notifications of BoL.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions affecting the amounts reported as assets and liabilities, the disclosure of any
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of
revenues and expenses in the reported periods. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from
those estimales.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

gaaenuuzHl 2024 JDB I 75




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

Recognition of interest income and expenses
Interest income recognition

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the nominal interest rates stipulated
in loan contracts with clients except for non-performing accounts and specific consideration.

Where an account becomes non-performing or when the management believes that the
borrower has no ability to repay the principal and interest, the recording of interest is
suspended, and interest income already recognised is reversed. Interest income will be
recognised if accrued interest on non-perfarming loans will be subsequently collected or
actually received. Gustomer accounts are deemed ta be non-performing where repayments
are in arrears for more than three months or 90 days. This is in line with the regulations of
BoL.

Interest expense recognition

Interest expense on deposits from customers, other banks, finance institutions and borrowing
are recognised on an accrual basis.

Recognition of fee and commission income

Fees and commissions consist of fees received for fund transfer (including cheque
settlement), foreign currency exchange transactions, financial guarantees and other banking
services.

Fee and commission income are recognized in the separate income statement on cash
basis.

Recognition of dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the payment is established.
Foreign currency transactions and transiation

The financial statements is presented in Lao Kip. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than LAK at year end are translated into LAK at the
exchange rate ruling on the statement of the financial report date. Income and expenses
arising in foreign currencies during the period are converted into LAK using the respective
month’s average exchange rate. Gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
in the statement of income when earned and incurred.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid short-term investments with an
original maturity of less than to 30 days that are readily convertible to known amount of cash,
gold and accounts due from banks with original maturity of less than 30 days or less.

2.6.1 Gold and other metal precious

Under the chart of account issued by the Accounting Department of BoL, Gold is
reclassified as cash and cash equivalent.

Management intended to be held gold for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to liquidity needs or changes in market rate are included in non-
current assets unless management has expressed the intention of holding the
investment for less than 12 months from the statement of financial position date or
unless they will need to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are
included in current assets.

Gold are initially recognised at cost, which is equal to the fair value of consideration
paid plus transaction cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

The fair value of gold is based on price at the close of business on the statement of
financial position date by reference to the London Bullion Market Association (LBMA)
market. The unrealised gain/(loss) from gold revaluation is recognised in equity.

On disposal of gold, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the statement of income. The unrealised
gain/(loss) from gald revaluation which previously recognised in equity is charged or
credited to the statement of income
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are recognized at cost and presented at outstanding balance less
specific provision for credit activities.

Classification of and provision for credit activities
Provision for credit losses
Classification

In accordance with Regulation 512/BOL dated 29 June 2018, and Official Letter
MNa.898/CBSD dated 14 November 2018, the Bank is required to classify loans and create a
provision for impairment losses. Accordingly, loans are classified into performing or non-
performing loans based on their payment arrears status and other qualitative factors.

Loans classified as normal/pass (Group A) and watch/special mention (Group B) are
considered performing loans. Loans classified as substandard (Group C), doubtful (Group
D) and loss (Group E) are considered non-performing loans.

Provision

Under Regulation 512/BOL dated 29 June 2018, to calculate provisions, banks can account
for collateral value with the percentage prescribed in the Regulation to deduct it from the loan
outstanding before applying the provision rates.

In accordance with Regulation 784/BOL dated 3 September 2018, commercial banks that
grant loans to SMEs under this regulation are eligible to set up provision at 0.20% of
outstanding the SME loan balances that are classified as normal.

Regarding the loans related to infrastructure development projects from the Government,
which are overdue, but project repayments are within schedule by the Government, the Bank
is allowed to classify there loans as Special Mention loans in accordance with Official Letter
No. 172/BOL dated 15 May 2017 by the Bank of the Lao PDR.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

gaaenuuzil 2024 JDB I 78




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Classification of and provision for credit activities (continued)

Provision (continued)

Provisions are categorised as general and specific based on the loan classification. Below is
a summary of provision rates applicable for each loan classification as at the balance sheet
date.

Accounting for Provision

Group Category provision balance rate Days past due

Performing (general)
Normal or In capital and reserves 0.5% Within 29 Days

pass
Watch or Deducted to loan 3%-5% 30 to 89 days
special balance
mention

Non-Performing (Specific)
C Substandard Deducted to loan 20% 90 to 179 days
balance
D Doubtful Deducted to loan 50% 180 to 359 days
balance
E Loss Deducted to loan 100% 360 days or more
balance

Provision amount is calculated by the following formulas:

General provision = Provision rate x Loan outstanding balance
Specific provision = Provision rate x Loan outstanding balance - undiscounted value
of collateral.

The performing-loan provision balance group A is recorded in the balance sheet in
‘Provision for performing loans’ under capital and reserve. The accumulated balance
of the nan-performing loan pravision and the performing-loan provision balance group
B are recorded to the balance sheet in ‘Loans to customers, net of provision for NPLs'.

Changes in the performing-loan provision is recorded in the income statement as
‘Other operating expenses’ for provision expenses, and '‘Other operating income’ for
reversals of provision expenses. Changes in the non-performing loan provision are
recorded in the income statement as ‘Net provision for NPLs changed tof (reversal out
of) expenses.

Leases

According to the BQOL's Notification No. 1433/BOL dated 24 October 2019 that requesting
commercial banks to apply lease account as mentioned in the guideline of the notification for
preparation and presentation of financial statements.

The Bank recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously
classified as finance lease or operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the
carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use
assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any
related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were
recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental barrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Uamanul=hl 2024
ANNUAL REPORT 2024




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Leases (continued)

The lease contract for office lease before adopting the notification no.1433/BOL issued by
Bol as mentioned on above, the Bank classified each of its leases -lessee at the inception
date as an operating lease. The rental fee record as period expenses based on contract
period.

Right-of-use assets

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
arrangement based on whether the contract that conveys to the user (the lessee) the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, If
a contract contains more than on lease component, or a cambination of leasing and services
transactions, the consideration is allocated to each of these lease and non-lease
components on conclusion and on each subsequent re-measurement of the contract on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices. The Bank cambines lease and non-lease
components, in cases where splitting the non-lease component is not possible.

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of cosis to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located, less any
lease incentives received. The lease term includes periods covered by an option to extend if
the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Unless the Bank is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment assessment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Bank and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank exercising
the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments aor a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying assets.

Payment for right of use assets are presented in the cash flow statement under investing
activities.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

210

Investment securities
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments include equity instruments that the Bank has intention to hold
for investrent and that are ready for trading. These securities are not frequently traded but
could be sold at any time the transaction yield benefit.

Investment is initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

The fair value is based on price at the close of business on the statement of financial position
date by reference to the Lao Securities Exchange (LSX) market. The unrealised gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of income.

On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the statement of income.

Held-to-maturity securities
Investment in government bond

Held-to-maturity investment in govemment bond, recognised at cost and subsequently
reflected at cost in the statement of financial position, are debt securities with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities, which the Bank has intention and ability to hold to
maturity to earn interest. When they are sold before maturity date, these securities will be
reclassified as trading securities or available-for-sale securities.

Debt settlement through government bond

Held-to-maturity securities, debt seftlement through government bond, are initially
recognized at face value and subsequently reflect at face value in the statement of financial
position. The difference between the face value and the purchase price will be considered
a discount. Discounts arising from securities purchases are amortized in the statement of
income using the straight-line method over the year from the acquisition dates to the maturity
dates.

Interest in joint venture

Interest in joint venture is investment in the other party that the Bank has Joint Venture
Agreements and has representative as director in those company.

The Bank's interest in joint venture are recognized at cost and subsequently reflected at cost
in the statement of financial position. Dividend and income ftransferred from joint ventures
are recognized in the statement of income as "Net gain fram equity investment”.

Foreclose assets

Foreclosed assets refer to properties seized due to non-payment of loan agreements. The
bank will auction these assets to recover the outstanding debt. Foreclosed assets are
recorded when the bank has the right to the foreclosed asset.

Foreclosed assets are recorded using the outstanding balance according to the customer's
contract and will be revalued upon sale. The difference between the sale price and the
carrying amount will be recognized as a profit or loss from the sale of the asset in the
statement of income.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13 Fixed assets
2.13.1Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets consist of land use rights and software. Acquired computer
software is measured at cost. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives as follow:

Land use rights (*) No amortisation
Computer software 20%

(*): Land use rights refer to land that the Bank owns but is recorded in the term of
accounts, issued by BOL, as land use rights. The cost of land use rights is not
amortized because they have an indefinite life.

Cost associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense
as incurred.

2.13.2Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets consist of buildings and improvements, office equipment,
furniture and fixtures, and motor vehicles.

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price plus any costs directly attributable
to the bringing of the asset to warking condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalized and
expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the statement of income, if
any.

When assets are sold or disposed, their cost and accumulated depreciation or
amortization are removed from the statement of financial position and any gains or
losses resulting fram their disposal are posted to the statement of income.

2.14 Depreciation

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets are provided on the straight-line basis at
prescribed rates over their estimated useful life in accordance with the Tax Law revised No.
67 date 18 Jun 2019 effective for accounting periods starting on 1 January 2020. The
following are the annual rates used:

Buildings & improvements 5% - 20%
Office equipment 20%
Maotor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 5% - 20%

Uaaanuu=htl 2024
MNUAL REFORT 2024




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Z SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.15 Regulatory reserve fund

Under the Law on Commercial Banks date 7 December 2018 requires commercial banks to
allocate net profit ta a regulatory reserve fund, business expansion fund, and others.

In accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of profit after
tax each year inta Regulatory reserve fund. When this reserve fund reaches 50% of the
registered capital, the Bank may suspend such provision, unless otherwise provided by the
laws. The Bank will record after getting approval from Annual General Meeting (AGM).

The Business expansion fund and other funds shall be created upaon decision of the Board
of Directors.

Taxation

The Bank is obliged to pay profit tax at rate of 20% of total taxable profit in accordance with
the Tax Law.

The Bank's tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the
application of Income Tax Laws and regulations in many types of transactions is susceptible
to varying interpretations, amounts reported in the financial statements could be changed at
a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

Employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the Social Security
Fund Department which belongs to the Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare. The Bank is
required to contribute to theses post-employment benefits by paying social insurance
premium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 6.00% of the employee’s basic salary
on a monthly basis. The Bank has no further obligation concerning post-employment benefits
for its employees other than this.

Termination benefits

In accordance with Article 82 of the Amended Labour Law No. 43/NA dated 24 December
2013 and the Decree of the President of the Lao Peaople’s Demacratic republic on the
Promulgation of the Labour Law (Amended) No. 068/P dated 28 January 2014, the Bank has
the obligation to pay allowance for employees who are terminated by dismissal in the
following cases:

B The employee lacks specialised skills or is not in good health and thus cannot continue
to work.

S The employer considers it necessary to reduce the number of workers in arder to
improve the work within the labour unit.

For the termination of an employment contract on any of the above-mentioned grounds, the
employer must pay a termination allowance which is calculated on the basis of 10% of the
basic monthly salary earned before the termination of work multiplied by the total number of
months worked.

As at 31 December 2024, there is no employees of the Bank who were dismissed under the
above-mentioned grounds, therefore the Bank has not made a provision for termination
allowance in the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest and similar income from:
Interbank transactions

Loans to customers

Bonds issued by the MOF

Interest and similar expenses for:
Deposits from other banks
Customers’ deposits

Net interest and similar income

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income from:
Interbank transactions

Trade finance, ATM and transmittance
activities

Settlement services

Fees and commission expenses for:

Settlement services
Interbank transactions

Net fee and commission income

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

25,556,5639,112
1,826,137,158,866
53,210,089,897

9,453,704,644
1,294,568,303,184
30,085,250,721

1,904,903,787,975

1,334,107,258,549

(143,122,767,591)

(1,293,141,081,379)

(1,436,263,848,970)

(98,233,057 501)
(926,552,788,875)
(1,024,785,846,376)

468,639,939,005

309,321,412,173

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

2,372,033,680

753,873,100,379
5,393,232,505

1,672,732,566

478,276,030,005
4,229,663,114

761,638,366,564

484,078,425,685

(23,438,468,112)
(102,647,087.069)

(10,832,926,054)
(56,922,294,187)

(126,085,555,181)

(67,755,220,241)

635,552,811,383

416,323,205,444

NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The net (loss)/gain from securities investment is mainly from the profit from bond discount, debt
settlement through government bond, amount of LAK 41,005,419,630 (2023: LAK17,231,179,060)
NET GAIN FROM DEALING IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

2024 2023
LAK LAK

66,802,556,870,065
(66,523,205,050,313)
279,351,819,752

8,128,573,105,640
(7,927.716,248,390)
200,856,857,250

Gain from dealing in foreign currencies
Loss from dealing in foreign currencies

Uoaequu=at 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Reversal of accrued interests and expenses
Recovery of bad debts written off

Income from dispasing fixed assets

Others income from banking expenses
Income from non-banking operation
Extraordinary income (1)

2024
LAK

2023
 LAK

20,815,467,992
3,000,000
1,466,892,586
6,820,638,700
4,181,136,669
30,133,514,553

1,024,123,097
527,075
186,216,960
4,976,278,442
2,243,486,240
3,093,787,579

63,420,650,500

11,524,419,393

(1) Extraordinary income for the year ended 31 December 2024 is mainly from gain from sale
foreclose assets amounting to LAK 26,194,682 ,487.

PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

Wages and allowances
Insurance expense for employees
Bonus and welfare benefits

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

103,943,971,230
2,248,746,622
68,967,629,000

83,913,124,358
2,131,919,284
42,155,482,829

Training expenses
Other benefits welfare

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Brokerage and professional fees (1)
Fuel and oils

Official business trips

Publication, marketing and promotion
expenses

General and administration expenses
Insurance fees

Paost and telecommunications
Maintenance and repair

Electricity and water supply

Office rental

Entertainments

Others (2)

1,337,396,610
29,313,177,238

470,596,170
20,265,484,095

205,810,920,900

148,936,609,736

2024
LAK

21,582,484,375
1,864,658,679
4,832,699,040

11,118,344,183
9,859,521,696
1,247,180,912
8,538,934,077
27,973,982,039
5,363,217,074
11,780,576,315
13,259,073,919
45,049,378,697

2023
LAK

14,411,855,803
1,883,305,817
3,007,278,589

6,309,827,830
5,424,838,351
932,997,391
5,616,988,826
20,950,337,383
4,471,301,574
9,670,350,851
7,708,761,146
23,413,665,864

162,470,051,006

103,801,509,425

(1)  This is included audit fee approximately LAK 708 million.
(2) Other expenses mainly consist of waiving various fees, such as card fees and late payment

penalties.

Uaaequuzant 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Depositor Protection Fund expense
Net provision for performing loans
Others (1)

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

25,243,829,096
64,983,353,880
58,427,506,729

18,096,537,612
31,358,194,457
9,785,524,064

148,654,689,705

59,240,256,133

(1) This consists of various expenses such as donations, land appraiser fees, and event

sponsorships

CASH ON HAND

Cash on hand in LAK
Cash on hand in foreign currencies

BALANCE WITH BOL

Demand deposits - current
Compulsory reserves - current (i)

Registered capital deposits (ii)

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

215,969,157,500
2,260,991,794,261

234,753,334,500
1,472,910,632,383

2,476,960,951,761

1,707,663,966,883

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

3.046.724,246,736
1,510,649,266,433
5,915,000

2,306,253,267,075
1,064,845,894,022
70,005,815,000

4,557,379,428,169

3,441,105,176,097

Accounts with the BOL include settlement and compulsory. These balances earn no interest.

(i) Under regulations of the BOL, the Bank is required to maintain cerlain reserves with the BOL
in the form of compulsory deposits, no interest, which are computed at 8% for LAK and
10.00% - 11.00% for foreign currencies (2023: 5% for LAK and 5% - 10%), on a bi-monthly
basis, of customer deposits having original maturities of less than 12 months. During the
year, the Bank maintained its compulsory deposits in compliance with the requirements by

the BOL.

Under regulation Degree No. 02/PR of BOL, commercial banks are required to maintain
a minimum balance of a special deposit at BOL equivalent to 25% of their paid-up capital to
ensure their operational continuance. During the year, the bank has received appraoval from
the Bank of the Lao PDR to use this portion of the funds to pay dividends to shareholders.

Gold and other metals precious in the bank

Gold and other Metals Precious In The Bank
Less Unrealized loss from gold revaluation

Uaaenuu=ant 2024
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2024
LAK

192,793,510,000
(10,994,711,473)

181,798,798,527
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

14. DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

Demand deposits at other banks
- Domestic banks
- Foreign banks
Term deposits at other banks
- Domestic banks (i)
Saving deposits at other banks (ii)
- Domestic banks
- Foreign banks

1,219,141,024,837
47,797,930,193
1,171,343,094,644
73,316,000,000
73,316,000,000
6,148,268,467
322,026,738
5,826,241,729

741,506,345,523
46,257,322,951
695,249,022,572
193,800,000,000
193,800,000,000
171,503,437,987
818,676,738
170,684,761,249

1,298,605,293,304

1,106,809,783,510

Interest rates for amounts due from ather banks during the year are as follows:

(i) The term deposit is denominated in USD, having term of 3 months, along with the interest at
rate of 3% - 12% per annum (2023: 2.5% - 3.5% per annum).

(i)  Saving deposits have no term and earn interest at rate ranging fram 0% - 1% per annum

(2023: 3.5% — 5.43% % per annum)

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

Available-for-sale securities (15.1)
Held-to-maturity securities (15.2)

2,350,000,000
995,117,955,022

2,350,000,000
714,435,591,658

997,467,955,022

716,785,591,658

15.1 Available-for-sale securities

The available-for-sale securities consist of 1,000,000 shares invested in EDL-Generation

Public Company, a listed company in Laos.

Uaaequu=nt 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

15. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

15.2 Held-to-maturity securities

Represent the bonds issue by Ministry of Finance and bond from debt settlement thraugh
government bond. Details of other bonds by contractual maturity date are as follows:

Details of other bonds by contractual maturity date are as follows:

Within 1 year
1to 5 years

2024
. LAK
79,561,136,589

354,770,692,901

2023
LAK

25,000,000,000
249,114,686,558

Over 5 years

560,786,125,532

995,117,955,022

440,320,905,100
714,435,591,658

Details of other bonds by interest rate are as follows:

Within 1 year
1to 5 years
QOver 5 years

2024
% per annum

2023
% per annum

5.50%
4.50% - 5.20%
5.30% - 6.00%

5.50%
4.50% - 5.20%
5.30% - 6.00%

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION FOR CREDIT ACTIVITIES

Loans to customers

(Note 16.1; 16.2; 16.3; 16.4)

Less specific provision

In which:

Specific provision for special mention loans
Specific provision for non-performing loans

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

20,642,217,789,697
(93,863,637,361)

(63,773,684,961)
(30,089,952,400)

16,669,895,535,280

(31,909,964,493)

(4,310,980,277)
(27.598,984,216)

20,548,354,152,336 16,637,985,570,787

Interest rates for commercial loans during the year are as follows:

Loans denaminated in LAK
Loans denominated in USD
Loans denominated in THB
Loans denominated in CNY

Uaaequu=int 2024
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2024
Interest rates
% per annum

2023
Interest rates
% per annum

5.50% - 16.00%
7.00% - 14.00%
7.00% - 14.00%
10.00% - 11.00%

JDB|88 |

5.50% - 16.00%
7.00% - 18.00%
7.00% - 13.00%

0.00%




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

16.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION FOR CREDIT ACTIVITIES

(CONTINUED)

16.1 Analysis of loan partfolio by currency

Loans denominated in LAK
Loans denominated in USD
Loans denominated in THB
Loans denominated in CNY

16.2 Analysis of loan portfolio by quality

Performing loans:
Normal or Pass
Watch or Special Mention

Nan-performing loans:
Substandard
Doubtful

Loss

Uoaequu=int 2024
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

1,318,725,830,855
10,684,512,124,777
8,638,730,894,363
248,939,702

2.112,981,690,386
5,903,053,493,681
8,653,860,351,213

20,642,217,789,697

16,669,895,535,280

18,420,439,986,196
2,125,789,498,688

95,988,294,813

16,423,042,096,015
77,162,655,595

191,379,566
21,061,367,000
148,448,037,104

20,642,217,789,697

16,669,895,535,280
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

16. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION FOR CREDIT ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
16.3 Changes in provision for credit losses
Changes in provision for credit losses during the year 2024 are as follows:

Provision for NPL Provision for PL
Specific provision for  Specific provision for General provision for
NPL special mention loans normal loans Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK

on

nnulpLe

Balance as at 1 January 2024 27,598,984.216 4.310,980,276 81,649,291 ,641 113,558,256,133
Pravision charged/{reversed) in the year (1,301,356,224) 60,901,884,931 4,081,468,949 63,681,997,656
Foreign exchange differences 3,792,324 ,408 (1,439,180,2486) 5,831,629,111 8,184,773,273
Balance as at 31 December 2024 30,089,952,400 63,773,684,961 91,562,389,701 185,426,027,062

0T LHOdIH TVNNNY
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Changes in provision for credit losses during the year 2023 are as follows:

Provision for NPL Provision for PL
Specific provision for  Specific provision for General provision
NPL special mention loans for normal loans Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK

Balance as at 1 January 2023 56,542, 387,464 2,481,057 447 58,237,986,413 117,261,431, 324
Provision charged/(reversed) in the year (10,342,289,448) 8,621,419,874 22,736,774,583 21,015,905,009
Foreign exchange differences (18,601,113,800) (6,791,497,044) 674,530,646 (24,718,080,198)

Baliiice as at31 Deceniber 2023 27,598,984,216 4,310,980,276 81,649,201,641  113,559,256,133
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

16. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION FOR CREDIT ACTIVITIES
(CONTINUED)

16.4 Provision for credit losses of loans to customers

The breakdown of loan classification and provision as required by the BoL as at 31 December
2024 is as follows:

Specific General
Loan balance Provision provision
Classification LAK LAK LAK

Performing loans:
- Normal or Pass 18,420,439,996,196 91,562,389,701
- Watch or Special

Mention 2,125,789,498,688 (63,773,684,961)

Non-performing loans:

- Substandard - -
- Doubtful .
- Loss 95,988,204,813  (30,089,952,400)
Total 20,642,217,789,697  (93,863,637,361) 91,562,389,701

The breakdown of loan classification and provision as required by the BoL on 31 December
2023 is as follows:

Specific General
Loan balance Provision provision
Classification LAK LAK LAK

Performing loans
- Normal or Pass 16,423,042,096,015 - 81,649,291,641
- Watch or Special

Mention 77,152,655,595 3,904,767,888

Non-performing loans

- Substandard 191,379,566 444,487,730
- Doubtful 21,061,367,000 8,759,705,665
- Loss 148,448,037,104 18,801,003,210

16,669,895,535,280 _ 31,909,964,493  81,649,291,641

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

17. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

2024 2023

Book value Ownership Book value Ownership
LAK % LAK Yo

Lao National Payment Network

Company Limited 1,697,780,000 5% 1,697,780,000 5%

Lao Foreign Exchange 1,000,000,000 5% -
2,697,780,000 -~ 1,697,780,000

Lao National Payment Network Company Limited (LAPNet) in Lao PDR provides a sub-
transaction payment system, acting as an intermediary between payment sectors and service
providers in Laos.

Lao Foreign Exchange (LFX), an online foreign exchange market system through the LFX
mobile banking application.
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS AND FIXED ASSETS IN TRANSIT

2024 2023
LAK LAK

Balance as at 1 January 7,886,831,879 11,743,465,031
- Additions during the year 27,224,778,252 7,790,239,379
- Transferred to tangible fixed assets (Note 20) (27,138,381,082) (11,646,872,531)
- Write-off (156,810,400) -
Balance as at 31 December 7,816,418,649 7,886,831,879

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

19.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

At 1 January 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount at 1 January
2023

Year ended 31 December 2024
Qpening net book amount
Additions

Amartisation

Write-off and disposal - net
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2024
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount at 31
December 2024

Land use rights
LAK

169,540,725,042

83,700,908,906
(87,460,033,220)

253,241,633,948
(67,460,033,220)

169,540,725,042

16,240,875,686

185,781,600,728

169,540,725,042
49,178,700,000

(4,744,866,600)

16,240,875,686

9,048,805,005
(2,879,439,232)
(1,494,102,460)

185,781,600,728
58,227,505,005
(2,879,439,232)
(6,238,969,060)

213,974,558,442

20,916,138,999

213,974,558,442

52,132,034,450
(31,215,895,451)

~234,890,697,441

266,106,592,892
(31,215,895,451)

213,974,558,442

20,916,138,999

234,890,697,441

Uaaenuu=at 2024
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

20. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Movement of tangible fixed assets for the year ended 31 December 2024 is as follows:

sprlBLlEon
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At 1 January 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount at 1 January 2023

Year ended 31 December 2024
Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfer in/(out) (Note 18)
Write-off, net

Amortisation

Closing net book amaount

At 31 December 2024
Cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book value at 31 December 2024

Buildings &
improvements
LAK

Office equipment
LAK

Furniture &
fixtures
LAK

Motor vehicles
LAK

64,329,335,004
(30,108,645,362)

100,996,036,491
(50,629,360,989)

108,128,409,860
(67,322,523,303)

23,456,278,857
(13,427,345,680)

206,910,060,212
(161,487,875,334)

_34,220,689,642

50,366,675,502

40,805,886,557

10,028,933,177

135,422,184,878

34,220,689,642
1,869,400,000

(676,544,458)
(3,281,303,719)

50,366,675,502
57,044,898,997
1,839,033,958
(71,763,340)
(23,054,647,751)

40,805,886,557
4,266,218,659
25,299,347,124
(655,329,634)
(14,559,580,670)

10,028,933,177
5,911,901,009

(1)
(3,258,665,084)

135,422,184,878
69,092,418,665
27,138,381,082
(1,403,637,433)
(44,154,197,224)

32,132,241,465

86,124,197,366

55,156,542,036

12,682,169,101

186,095,149,968

64,969,275,103
(32,837,033,638)

157,113,231,461
(70,889,034,095)

132,590,707,220
(77,434,165,184)

29,235,660,416
(16,563,491,315)

383,908,874,200
(197,813,724,232)

32,132,241,465

86,124,197,366

55,156,542,036

12,682,169,101

186,095,149,968




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

21.

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

At 1 January 2023

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount at 31 December 2023

Year ended 31 December 2024
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposal — net

Amortisation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2024

Cost

Less: Accumulated amaortisation

Net book value at 31 December 2024

OTHER ASSETS

Tax recoverable

Advance to foreign credit cards

Prepaid expense waiting to be allocated
Receivables from employee

Foreclosed assets

Collateral depaosit

Others

Uaaequu=at 2024

2024
LAK

24,953 862,350
(8,879,346,259)
16,074,516,091

16,074,516,091
8,674,521,900

(4,180,261,376)

20,568,776,615

33,628,384,250
(13,059,607.635)
20,568,776,615

2023
LAK

3,031,632,420
47,980,860,965
40,809,181,722
12,616,863,125
1,728,588,092,892

575,852, 044,580

3,031,632,420
21,455,783,577
24,621,505,562
12,818,586,781
1,188,627,324,300
141,094,008,544
514,781,936,440

2,408,878,675,704

1,906,430,777,624
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

23,

Demand deposits

Domestic banks and financial inslifutions
National treasury

Saving deposits

Domestic banks and financial institutions
Term deposits

Domestic banks and financial institutions
Other institutions

Borrowings

Bank of Laoc PDR*

DUE TO OTHER BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

214,626,549,182
203,052,603,345
11,573,945,837
32,495,191
32,495,191
1,360,133,700,000
1,360,133,700,000

1,055,809,420,000
1,065,809,420,000

Other payables to other banks and financial

institutions

22,971,047

168,681,974,087
39,750,127,835
128,831,846,252
12,424,485
12,424,485
543,718,700,000
543,718,700,000

1,348,310,000,000
1,348,310,000,000

49,377,612

2,630,625,135,420

2,060,772,476,184

Interest rates for deposits from other banks and financial institutions during the year are as follows:

Demand depaosits
Term deposits
Saving deposits

2024

% per annum
0.00% - 0.60%
3.20% - 13.00%
1.00%

(*) Details of BOL Borrowing as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Purpose Currency

Interest rate

Term % per annum

2023

% per annum
0.00% - 0.50%
3.50% - 7.50%
1.00%

2024
LAK

Covid 19 Program LAK

usD
LAK

Covid 19 Program
For SMEs

3.00%
5.45% + 3months
CME Term SOFR
2.50%

6 years

5 years
5 years

Details of BOL Borrowing as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Purpose Currency

Interest rate

Term % per annum

727,170,000,000

216,580,000,000
112,059,420,000

1,055,809,420,000

2023
LAK

Covid 19 Program LAK

Covid 192 Program

Uaaequu=ant 2024
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3.00%

5.45%+Libor 3 months
Start 1 November 2023,
The Bank used

5years 5.45%+3SOFR 3 months

6 years
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

24. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits

Demand deposits in LAK

Demand deposits in foreign currency
Saving deposits

Saving deposits in LAK

Saving deposits in foreign currency
Fixed term deposits

Fixed term deposits in LAK

Fixed term deposits in fareign currency

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

2,056,549,221,831
423,242 .680,141
1,633,306,541,690
5,005,982,924,489
972,578,538,165
4,033,404,386,324
20,413,715,563,962
1,366,500,080,655
19,047,215,483,307

1,401,592,525,665
225,061,892,942
1,176,530,632,723
3,692,698,094,953
829,362,425,494
2,863,335,669,459
16,772,872,541,661
1,690,139,091,034
15,082,733,450,627

27,476,247,710,282

21,867,163,162,279

The interest rates during the year for these deposits are as follows:

Demand deposits

Saving deposits in LAK
Saving deposits in USD
Saving deposits in THB
Saving deposits in CNY

Term deposits in LAK*
Term deposits in foreign currencies

Share capital

Share capital
(shares)

2024

% per annum

No interest

0.85% - 1.89%
0.50% - 3.00%
0.50% - 3.00%
0.30% - 0.60%

1.50% - 12.50%
2.00% - 10.00%

Registered
Share capital
(LAK)

2023
% per annum

No interest

0.85% - 3.78%
0.50% - 3.00%
0.50% - 3.00%
0.30% - 0.60%

1.50% - 7.98%
1.20% - 7.50%

Paid-up share
capital
(LAK)

At 1 January 2023
Issue of shares

44,466,610
3,000,000

444,666,100,000
30,000,000,000

444,6686,100,000
30,000,000,000

At 31 December 2023 47,466,100

474,666,100,000

474,666,100,000

At 1 January 2024
Issue of shares

47,466,100
20,000,000

474,666,100,000

200,000,000,000

474,666,100,000
200,000,000,000

At 31 December 2024 67,466,610

674,666,100,000

674,666,100,000

As at 31 December 2024, the registered share capital amounting to LAK 674,666 million (2023:
LAK 474,666 million) with a LAK 10,000 per share (2023: LAK 47,466,100 share).

According to letter from BOL no. 437 /new on 6 March 2023, the Bank increase share capital from

LAK 444,666,100,000 to LAK 474,666,100,000,

As at the date of this report, the contributed capital is LAK 674,666 million which doesn’t meet the
required LAK 1,000,000 million stipulated by Decree No. 095/BOL dated 30 August 2023 that effect
on 15 September 2023, The Decree requires all commercial banks in Lao PDR to increase their
charter capital to LAK 1,000,000 million. Management is in process of discussing their plan with
shareholders and the BOL and believe that the Bank can comply with this Decree with no significant

effect on business.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

26.

RESERVES

Regulatery and general reserve fund

As at 1 January 2023

Regulatory
reserve fund
LAK

General
reserve fund
LAK

Total
LAK

Appropriate to reserves for the year

2023

Appropriate to reserves for tax paid
As at 31 December 2023

As at 1 January 2024

31,030,555,696

16,194,932,938

19,794,446,027

16,194,932,938
32,389,865,877

50,825,001,723

32,389,865,876
32,389,865,877

47,225,488,634

68,379,244,842

115,604,733,476

Appropriate to reserves for the year

2024

Appropriate to reserves for tax paid

47,225,488,634

28,715,062 ,263

68,379,244 842
26,715,062,283

115,604,733,476

53,430,124,526

As at 31 December 2024

_73,940,550,897

95,094,307,105

~169,034,858,002

According ta the general shareholders' meeting no.005/wmes on 8 January 2024, there had been
authorised to reserve the regulatory reserve fund and general reserve funds. The general annual
reserve fund amounted of LAK 26,715,062,263.

DIVIDENDS

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

Dividend paid 480,876,691,690 259,118,927,020
(25,911,892,702)

(30,000,000,000)

Less: Income tax for dividends (10%)
Less: Issue of shares

(48,087,669,169)
(200,000,000,000)

232,789,022,521 203,207,034,318

Net dividend paid

On 9 January 2024, the Annual General Shareholder's Meeting approved lo pay dividends from
net profit for 2023 to shareholder's amount to LAK 480,876,691,690. These dividends were paid in
February 2024.

On 20 January 2023, the Annual General Shareholder's Meeting approved to pay dividends from
net profit for 2022 to shareholder's amount to LAK 259,118,927,020. These dividends were paid in
February 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

28. TAXATION
Profit tax expense
Current profit tax expense

Provision is made for profit tax on the current period’s profits, based on the Tax Law. The Bank is
obliged to pay tax at rate of 20% on total taxable profit before profit tax.

2024 2023
LAK LAK

Profit/(Loss) before tax 921,122, 437,051 593,961,597,815
Less: Non-taxable income (66,543,402,530,920) (7,566,133,728,234)
Add: Non-deductible expenses 66,521,587 ,435,135 7,375,242,814,588
Taxable profit 899,307,341,266 403,070,684,169

Current profit tax at 20% 179,861,468,253 80,614,136,834

Tax adjustment for previous years based on

result of tax authority’s inspection * 3,044,789,630
179,861,468,253 83,658,926,464

Payable at the beginning of the year 15,491,724 526 8,798,385,870
Tax paid during the year (85,004,806,062) (76,965,587,808)

Payable at the end of the year 110,348,386,717 15,491,724,526

The Bank’s tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the application
of tax laws and regulations in many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations,
amaunts reported in the financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final
determination by the tax authaorities.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2024 2023
LAK LAK

Cash on hand 2,476,960,951,761 1,707,663,966,883
Demand deposits with the BoL 3,046,724, 246,736 2,306,253,267,075
Current accounts with other banks 1,225,289,293,304 913,009,783,510

6,748,974,491,801 4,926,927,017 468

COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT

2024 2023
LAK LAK

Bank guarantee 426,764,482,141 119,023,125,925

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 13 May 2025, the Bank transiticned from a limited to a public company and was renamed "Joint
Development Bank Public Company."
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To: The shareholder of Joint Development Bank Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Joint Development Bank Limited (“the Bank”) for the year ended
31 December 2024 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant regulations and
notifications of the Bank of Lao People’s Democratic Republic and the accounting policies described in
Note 2 to the financial statements.

What we have audited
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of accounting and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policies described in Note 2
to the financial statements. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our report is intended solely for the Bank and the Bank of Lao People’s Democratic Republic and should
not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Bank and the Bank of Lao People’s Democratic
Republic. Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited. 4t Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, PO Box 7003,
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, Telephone : + 856 21 222718-9, Facsimile: + 856 21 222723, wuw.pwe.com/la
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Responsibilities of the directors of the Bank for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of the Bank of Lao People's
Democratic Republic and the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern.

i PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited. 4% Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, PO Box 7003,
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, Telephone : + 856 21 222718-9; Facsimile: + 856 21 222723, www.pwe.cont/la
5
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited

Vientiane Captal, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

{ PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited. 4 Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, PO Box 7003,
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, Telephone : + 856 21 222718-9, Facstmile: + 856 21 222723, www.pwe.com/la
6




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

A.  OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

1 Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expenses

NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Net (loss)/gain from securities investment
Net gain from dealing in foreign currencies

()[4 BE S\

NET OPERATING INCOME

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other operating income
Administration expenses

Payroll and other staff costs

Other administrative expenses

@®e~

[ I

Depreciation and amortization charges
0  Other operating expenses

— 0

Net provision for non-performing loans
11 charged to expense

lll. TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAX
12 Current profit tax

IV. PROFIT AFTER TAX

Prepared by:

&
i

Notes

2024
LAK

2023
LAK

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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8
9

18, 20, 21
10

28

1,904,903,787,975
(1,436,263,848,970)

1,334,107,258,549
(1,024,785,846,376)

468,639,939,005

309,321,412,173

761,638,366,564

(126,085,555,181)
41,005,419,630
279,351,819,752

484,078,425,685
(67,755,220,241)

17,231,179,060
200,856,857,250

1,424,549,989,770

943,732,653,927

63,420,650,500
(368,280,971,9086)
{205,810,920,900)
(162,470,051,006)

(51,213,897,832)
(148,654,689,705)

1,301,356,224

11,524,419,393
(252,738,119,161)
(148,936,609,736)
(103,801,509,425)

(38,974,810,764)
(59,240,256,133)

(10,342,289,448)

921,122,437,051

593,961,597,814

(179,861,468,253)

(83,658,926,464)

741,260,968,798

510,302,671,350

Sauaneu?
Chal

Mr. SaKFone Yo

General Director
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

1]

Vi

Vil

ASSETS

Cash and accounts with the BOL
1. Cash on hand

2. Balance with BOL

3. Gold and other metal precious

Due from other banks
1. Dermand deposits

2. Term deposits

3. Saving deposits

Investment in securities

1. Available-for-sale securities
2. Held-to-maturity securities

Loans to customers, net of

specific provision for credit activities

Interest in joint ventures

Fixed assets

1, Construction in progress and fixed assets in

transit
2. Intangible fixed assets
3. Tangible fixed assets
4. Right of use asset

Other assets
1. Accrued interest receivable
2. Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

2024 2023
Notes LAK LAK
7,216,139,178,457 5,148,769,142,980
1" 2,476,960,951,761 1,707,663,966,883
12 4,557, 379,428,169 3,441,105,176,097
13 181,798,798 527 -
14 1,298,605,293,304 1,106,809,783,510
1,219,141,024,837 741,506,345,523
73,316,000,000 193,800,000,000
6,148,268,467 171,503,437 ,987
15 997,467,955,022 716,785,591,658
2,350,000,000 2,350,000,000
995,117,955,022 714,435,591,658
18 20,548,354,152,336 16,637,985,570,787
17 2,697,780,000 1,697,780,000
449,371,042,673 345,165,133,576
18 7.816,418,649 7,886,831,879
19 234 890,697 441 185,781,600,728
20 186,095,149,968 135,422,184 878
21 20,568,776,615 16,074,516,091
2,631,775,971,915 2,126,034,768,979
222,897,296,211 219,603,991 355
22 2,408,878,675,704 1,806,430,777,624

33,144,411,373,707

26,083,247,771,490

Souloneys

990

Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay
General Director

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

| Due to other banks and financial institutions
1. Demand and saving deposits
2. Term deposits
3. Borrowings
4, Other payables

] Due to customers
1. Demand and saving deposits
2. Term deposits

|} Other liabilities
1. Accrued interests payable
2. Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

v Capital and reserves
1. Share capital
. Regulatory reserve fund
. General reserve fund
. General provision for credit activities
. Provision for unrecoverable assets
. Unrealized gain/(loss) from gold revaluation

[} I8, I SR F% B N

7. Retained earnings
TOTAL CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

2024 2023
Notes LAK LAK
23 2,630,625,135,420 2,060,772,476,184

214,659,044 373
1,360,133,700,000
1,055,809,420,000

22,971,047

24 27,476,247,710,282
7,062,532,146,326
20,413,715,563,956

1,357,960,908,399
924,445,916,347
433,514,992,052.00

168,694,398,572
543,718,700,000
1,348,310,000,000
49,377,612

21,867,163,162,279
5,094,290,620,618
16,772,872 541,661

935,037,177,116
700,874,155,002
234,163,022,114

31,464,833,754,101

24,862,972,815,5679

25 674,666,100,000
26 73,940,550,897
26 95,094,307,105

16.4 91,562,389,701

94,029,775,080
13 (10,994,711,473)

661,279,208,296

474 666,100,000
47,225,488,634
68,379,244,842
81,649,291,641
94,029,775,080

454,325,055,714

1,679,577,619,806

1,220,274,955,911

33,144,411,373,707

26,083,247,771,490

L)
‘S‘

&/ e o\
goudonyu
90

JOINT DEVELOPMENT,

Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay
General Director

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Provision for General
unrecoverable provision for Regulatory General

Share capital asset credit activities reserve fund reserve fund  Retained earnings Total

Note LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 444,666,100,000 94,029,775,080 58,237,986,413 31,030,555,696 19,794,446,027 235,531,177,260 883,290,040,476
Paid up 25 30,000,000,000 - = = e - 30,000,000,000
Approriated-legal reserve 26 & 16,194,932,938 - (16,194,932,938) -
General reserve fund 26 - - - 16,194,932 938 (16,194,932 ,938) -
Dividend paid 27 - - - - (259,118,927,020) (259,118,927,020)

Net general provision for credit activities during

the year 16.3 - 23.411,305,228 - - - 23,411,305,228
Reverse reserve for tax penalty paid 26 - - 32.380,865,877 32,389,865,877
Met profit for the year E - - 510,302,671,350 510,302,671,350

Closing balance at 31 December 2023 474,666,100,000 94,029,775,080 81,649,291,641 47,225,488,634 68,379,244,842 454,325,055,714 1,220,274,955,911

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao POR
Date: 21 May 2025

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

& :
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sSauuney

L b"l‘J }\

orphﬂmcay

General Director
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Opening balance at 1 January 2024
Paid up
Appronated-legal reserve
General reserve fund
Dividend paid
Unrealized loss on avallable for sale - Gold
Net general provision for credit activities
during the year
Net profit for the year

Closing balance at 31 December 2024

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao POR
Date: 21 May 2025

Provision for Unrealized General
unrecoverable gain/{loss) from provision for Regulatory General

Share capital asset gold revaluation credit activities reserve fund reserve fund  Retained earnings Total

Note LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK
474,666,100,000 94,029,775,080 - 81,649,291,641 47,225,488,634 68,379,244, 842 454,325,0565,714 1,220,274,955,911
25 200,000,000,000 - el - 2 - - 200,000,000,000
26 - - - - 26,715,062,263 (26,715,062,263) &
26 - - - - - 26,715,062,263 (26,715,062,263) -
7 - = 5 = - (480,876,691,690) (480,876,691,680)
14 - - (10,994,711,473) - o = (10,994,711,473)
16.3 - - 9,813,098,080 - - - 9,913,098,060.00
- - = - 741,260,968,798 741,260,968,798.00

674,666,100,000 94,029,775,080 (10,994,711,473) 91,562,389,701 73,940,550,897 95,084,307,105 661,279,208,296 1,679,577,619,606

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/{loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

2024

Notes LAK

2023
LAK

921,122,437,051

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Wirte-off and disposal
Net provision expense

19, 20, 21
18,19, 20
16.3

51,213,897,832
7,799,416,893
63,681,997 656

Interest income
Interest expense

Cash flows from operating profit before changes in

operating assets and liabilities

{Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Balances with other banks
Loans to customers
Other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due to BOL and other banks
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Cash generated from (used in) operations
Profit tax paid during the year

Interest Paid

Interest Received
Profit tax paid

Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for construction in progress and tangible

3 (1,904,903,787,975)
3 1,436,263,848,970

593,961,597,814

45,772,010,832
9,845,178.429
{1,334,107,258,549)
1.024,785,846,376

575,177,810,427

(255,319,272,411)
(3,964,137,481,145)
(502,447,858,080)

B91,448,239,236
5,609,084,546,003
56,407,638,579

340,257,374,902

(865,564,138,704)
(4,670,022,839,754)
{1,114,378,509,313)

71,171,754,208
7,727,013,623,803
159,094 841,488

2,410,213,584,609

(1,212,692,087,625)
1,901,610,483,118
(85,004,806,062)

1,647,572,306,630

(820,556,960,695)
1,332,210,517,150
(76,965,587,808)

3,014,127,174,040

2,082,260,275,277

assets

Payment for intangible assets

Pyament for tangible assets

Proceed from disposals of assets

Pyament for right of use assets

Payment from investment in financia! investment - hold
to maturity

Proceed from investment in financial investment - hold

18
18

21

(27,224,778,252)
(58,227 505,005)
(69,092,418,665)

(8,674,521,900)

(1,297,653,526,153)

to maturity

Payment from investment in financial investment - Gold

and other metal precious

Payment for associates and joint ventures investments

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lao PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

(7,790,239,379)
(21,771,898 ,456)
(44,923,676,690)

426,405,604
(10,146,016,686)

(233,165,140,000)

1,016,971,162,789 34,459,605,000
(192,793,510,000) -
(1,000,000,000) -
(282,910,960,607)

& g;mfélyl%
A
-mm

Mr. Sakhone Yorphanxay
General Director

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.




JOINT DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of dividend
Payment for borrowing with Bal

Proceeds from borrowing with BolL
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash investing activities

Paid dividend by offsetting against receivable of
shareholders for issuance of share capital and income fax
for dividends

Prepared by:

Ms. Khonesavanh Vixathep
Head of Finance and Accounting department

Vientiane, Lac PDR
Date: 21 May 2025

2024 2023

Notes LAK LAK
27 (232,789,022,521) (203,207,034,318)
(435,155,000,000) - 41,915,000,000.00
113,559,420,000 -
{554,384,602,521) (245,122,034,318)
1,822,047,474,333 1,5654,227,280,352

4,926,927,017 468 3,372,699,737,116

29 6,748,974,491,801 4,926,927,017,468

248,087 ,669,169.00

55,911,892,702

General Director

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Attachement 4: Agenda 1

Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB for the year 2024

Agenda 1: Consider and approve the annual report on the performance and financial statements of
JDB for the year 2024
Business results for the year 2024 audited by PWC and approved by JDB’s Board of Directors
are the following:
e Total Assets: 33,144,411 billion LAK, compared with the 2024 plan achieved 90.68%;
e Total Deposits: 30,106,873 billion LAK, compared with the 2024 plan achieved 94.50%;
e Total Loans: 20,548,354 billion LAK, compared with the 2024 plan achieved 82.40%;
e NPL Ratio: 0.24%;
e Net Profit: 741,261 billion LAK, compared with the 2024 plan achieved 70.49%.

Opinion of the Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors agreed with the report and proposal. Therefore, the
Shareholders’ Meeting is requested to consider and approve.

Vote requirement:
This agenda will be approved if the approved votes reach more than half of the total
votes in the meeting.

Agenda 2: Consider and approve the audit report on the financial statement of JDB for the year 2024
The audit report on the financial statement of JDB for the year 2024 (Attachment 02)

Agenda 3: Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB
JDB would like to request the meeting to consider and approve the allocation of the profit
after tax of the year 2024 into reserves and dividends for the shareholders as follows:

- Net profit after tax according to BOL stand dark for the year 2024: 741,260,968,798 LAK;
- Regulatory reserve (10%): 74,126,096,880 LAK;

- Expansion fund: 7,713,971,918 LAK;

- Dividend payment: 880 LAK/share;

- Total dividend amount: 660,000,000,000 LAK;

- Dividend payment date: 25 December 2025.

Table of Dividend Payment to Shareholders:

No. Shareholders Percentage Number of Shares | Amount of dividend
(%) (Share) payment (LAK)

1 SMG Group Sole Co., Ltd 84.56% 634,186,134 558,096,000,000

2 Mrs. Kanya PHICHIT 4.05% 30,359,975 26,730,000,000

3 Mr. Phouxaysana 1.35% 10,119,991 8,910,000,000

Xaysombat

4 Public investors 9.04% 67,800,500 59,664,000,000

5 JDB’s employees 1% 7,533,400 6,600,000,000
Total 100% 750,000,000,000 660,000,000,000

JDB has selected the date of 14 November 2025 as the record date to determine the right of
the shareholders to receive the dividends for the year 2024 which has already been disclosed.

1| Consider and approve the dividend for the year 2024



Opinion of the Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors agreed with the report and proposal. Therefore, the Shareholders’
Meeting is requested to consider and approve.

Vote requirement:

This agenda will be approved if the approved votes reach more than half of the total votes in
the meeting.

2 | Consider and approve the dividend for the year 2024
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Tuwsudn - Proxy

BUIZERY oo SUZIN e
[/ WE e Nationality ..........cccceeiiiiiininnnnn,
ESOUIANYT e UM, 09,
Residing at..........covvvvviiiiin. Village.....cooooeeiiiiiiiiis District.........ccccoiiiiiiiiies
(8 =3s | TR RPPRRRRIN ProVINCE.. ..o

ugfisuesnasolinne Usmagy

Being a shareholder of Joint Development Bank Public

DSUNTRMOU oo SURYNINUAIVOUIINAAIOUUVRS)
Holding a total number of ...................... shares which are equivalent to the same number
of votes

2USUIERLIBNIAUINISNI=E ((A9N 1 vil) - Hereby assign the Independent Board

Member (select only one):

O v yugu Sx=mdn O v gnawndy LSy
Mr. Bounsoum SISAVAT Mr. Souksavanh MANIVANH

O i1y U.8 9.0 YuIdy
PhD. Chomkham BOUPHALIVANH
O yné ué‘nnzanmzq Awavajo/ Or other person, please specify:

SUSUTUIY YIIUTIN UTT.vveereeeeerereeseressese e ssessssseessse e s enteeseneeesneeeenns (SN [T

Hereby assign Mr./MS .........ooeeiiieiiiicee e Age...uveeeeiiiiin,
SUZI0 e ESSUIRANT. covveee e
Nationality.........cccueeeeiiiiiis Residing at.........cccceiiiiiiiieen
TNt C9Ye et 1820 s URURURTUURORRRROR
Village.......ooooviiiiiiiiienis District........ccccceeeiiiie Province.........ccccccceeiiinie

‘Zzﬁcﬁw@mgvﬁ%esyé’lwm%ﬂ (H9r2180L 1Ay S9OUULISILIISI R g]‘iunegdzgu@ﬁéu nes, fiawinSuty
(921 9:00 Tu9 2993ud1 09 Hiuoa 2025.
To be my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf in the Shareholders’ Meeting

of the Joint Development Bank Public (JDB) which will be held at 09:00 AM of 09

1 | Tuueudn-Proxy



December 2025.
3. S 931;sﬂn‘izﬁr;imjUﬁﬂﬁjazccuuajjccmuéwzﬁﬂ eﬁunsgdzguﬁjﬁ (c:3enc8aotly mmsajmﬂjcﬁsngiuﬁ)

| /We authorize the proxy to vote on my/our behalf in the Meeting as follows (choose

one from the two following options):

3.1 0 WigmagpinB8ndaasu wae Sjesuugsgnaiunicnuswsdn nudidnsodiv Suaoy; §
To grant the proxy to consider and vote in all agendas on my/our behalf as the proxy
may deem appropriate; or

3.2 O Witkgpindsascuugginiuaiunggniuesiswa st (facdenst), niuadendsescuy ivs §
Degiue Tugnagonargui):

To grant the proxy to vote as per my/our intention indicated in the followings (If you
select this option, please choose to vote either approve or disapprove in every

agenda):

0w 01: €121 1y Sus9) Gunwdlugiu Jzxad 2024 299 as;
Agenda 01: Consider and approve the annual report for the year 2024 of JDB;
O i/ Approve [ Ui/ Disapprove
01w 02: UA1RzU1 Ry SUs99 JNR1eJIUTIUENINCU Uzl 2024 299 nes;
Agenda 02: Consider and approve the audit report on the financial statement of JDB
for the year 2024;
O i/ Approve [ Gy Disapprove
972w 03: U1V €T SUS9Y cwunuAreciuduty U 2024 297 neas.
Agenda 03: Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB for the year

2024.

O i/ Approve [ &y Disapprove

4. mudjeucuugsiesinueitidduiuninluseudnd  Wiowfindey  war  drlunwdjescuuesy
Sl
Any votes made by the proxy contradicting to this Proxy shall be considered as invalid
and shall not constitute my/our votes as the shareholder.

5. haslfgwuan dtdazyaoiuteinuesgiulunidjasuugg tuotmstnoly § awtddavedy Wit

SN 1RIOACVUKTATUE.

2 | Tusudn-Proxy



In case |/we have failed to specify my/our voting intention in any agenda or not clearly
specified, my/our vote in such agenda shall be deemed approved.
z{mmwmzﬁﬂ‘6029jt§m‘1jUﬁ°1‘Zunanzguzﬁc’ﬂu‘cdmu‘iuusvﬁnﬁ ‘Em"ﬁ:j’léﬂwzcéﬂ‘cﬁmuﬁcajzgm:zmw.
Any action made by the proxy in the meeting in accordance with this Proxy, shall be

deemed as having been performed by myself/ourselves in all respects.

Nat...ccooeeeeeenne. Sudi/date ....... [ 12025
Sugifisuiusunume/ Signed by the shareholder t3utinrgoie/ Signed by the proxy

ourscnn/Remark:

1. sy nsﬁentcﬁjﬁjr{imjUﬁWjj@njacgﬂs'ounsjUzg.u 1Ry AIOUUVRSIENUTUCDI;

The shareholder is required to assign only one proxy to attend and vote in the meeting
on the shareholder’s behalf;

2. tmagoiin degRungenzaesfueld weiingurAntngdmeusy & Ondydndo dudiutufio §
sligSuicay (S13ugdsRuciauann) deufiuduhussmmdzunngofinieeifidy, Wosudnastiot wax
olgdeBuuzgu.

The proxy must present to the officers at registration desk his/her valid ID Card, or
family book or passport (in case of foreign investor) together with the copies of the

same documents of the shareholder, this Proxy, and the Invitation to the Meeting.

3 | tuusugn-Proxy



tanzg1uanfin 6/ Attachement 6

£10CUJ1 NSONUNIUIIOLLUVRT)
Vote Instruction

1. negzgu AwBuwFIcigiSurimtnd i ?1ﬁnmﬁnsgdxgu‘cﬁﬁﬂaxcuﬁczﬁﬂﬁu 9OV
(o000 fSuriT0a Fiud Anauecigttgriao dstudiedevauugsiing).

Only the shareholders who DISAPPROVE with the matters proposed by the meeting are invited to

vote (meaning that for those who agree with such appointment are not necessary to make any vote)
2. TUNIWAIOLLUUKSY é?zﬁMﬂuUznauéqucanﬁué‘éu (6 Botan) t8aziunaudgascuugs) firdns.

(ﬁ’lﬁﬁégufﬁ’jma ¢ IURZTUNIUINEUTY) R UI0390TE VLR .

To vote, kindly fill in the voting system in which you must specify clearly about your Shareholder’s

account number of JDB shares you are holding (if such information is not available in the voting

system) and click in the Disapprove.

3. zn"1uQ”‘cﬁ§Uccﬁjn'joﬁutﬁumuﬁuazccuueﬁmﬁwgucﬁe Toemuﬁuaxccuuajj%ﬁcéwﬁjsjw hfiu
IUINLCUURS).

You will be informed about the Votlng result rlght in the meeting with one share equals one vote.

4. ﬂ’lﬂJQjﬂuECUUﬂjj UCUDJO A JBUENEn ﬂmC.U8.UEIUEDJIJRijjmﬂEJﬂDﬂCﬂjUUjQSjQﬂJOUSU nas ZﬂjU'JJﬂ
cZﬂJU]U‘u%JJ, EJﬂCO‘]JO"IZUUCCOU]C']Sf]Qf]ﬂuECIJIJle:]OOEJJJumﬁuCM‘IulJlJ ﬂuEC'lJ‘]JR]j:]UEUI?JOC’]Q:]JJE]uEClJlJmﬂEJ
N3 1/3 2991WOUSU 1aS ﬁjz}ﬁo?mﬁw%u.

The Disapproval votes will become effective only if such votes account for more than half of the
total number of JDB shares attending the meeting, except for any agenda that requires a specific

resolution, Disapproval vote shall account for more than 1/3 of the total number of JDB shares
attending the meeting.

ouecn/Remark:
1. &jc’éﬂs'ouzﬁﬁtﬁﬁgmzv;wcéﬂUzgu 20580 N3 ereuUS).
Any attendees who failed to make registration will not be eligible to votes.
2. &”Jzﬁ‘cﬁﬁjznzu;umjssumy 1IN IOLLUUKFI[0 o1 t.
Any who successfully reglstered will be eligible to make advance voting.
3. znnmmjauccuuajj Jediud doartnots znnmj?mzndug.u mjﬂmznnsjuuau‘mdumnmummj
£120C U 28:]0’]&]u1J1JCCQO (4N} 'QuUﬂ’l.U’lﬂ’.UjﬂuECUlJﬂjj\COSN

All disapprove votes in any Agenda which is submitted to the Meeting after the Meeting has
announced the voting result of such Agenda and could not be able to vote anymore

1 |eccuzanaudgeseuugs) (Vote Instruction) V1.0.0.11.2025



> QR Code Jjnzusu/ QR Code for registration:

™
u i [w
.F 2 ]
- L
. -5 r_- e
AzUFURISOUND8AEY AzUusuRIsounosfonny AzUFUEIIU98UL
In-person Registration Proxy registration Online registration

> QR Code Jjaenuuxsy/ QR Code for voting agenda:

21 1: WXV (R SUS9Y Guniuinlugiy Jzand 2024 299 nas
Agenda 1: Consider and approve the annual report for the year 2024 of JDB

1N 2: WAV €AY SUS9Y TNRWPUTIVENIUCU JrRad 2024 299 nas
Agenda 2: Consider and approve the audit report on the financial statement of JDB for the year 2024

21U 3: WAV (R SUS9Y wwuNIUAwGuduEy O 2024 299 nas
Agenda 3: Consider and approve the dividend payment plan of JDB

2 |eccuzianiudgezeuuss) (Vote Instruction) V1.0.0.11.2025



tanzg1uantin 7/ Attachment 7

:a::Ujun'joﬁunmﬁncﬁunsndzgumﬁu:.jﬁsfn NEVINWSDULNUIEUT LenSu (nes)
Rules for the Shareholders’ Meeting of Joint Development Bank Public (JDB)

1. n1nﬁgmwwcﬁscéns’ounsgd&gu/ Registration for attending the meeting
t§c§a5’oun93dxgumnﬁu fiogdqneusutdissusss musuneud mes rdntdnsudisouns;
UrgL 1z (i99wyenntdl nas Saldndzditio § slisSuucou g toNER1USU7) NRILINTSENU LS
(o8t Scugnn .

All attendees must complete registration in accordance with the procedures specified by JDB

before attending the meeting and allow JDB to photocopy their ID cards or passports or other
similar documents as evidence.

tingoiiaciozuenenyaues fue)dusiingudsAntned sy &: tnursado § Judautudo §
sligSedueny (S1[uTNIJRVCIYLnN) oy é‘d’lE1J’IC8ﬂ“§ﬂUU”CUOOjOﬂUU283@ﬁ$'}J e W
usudn.

Haconeguduwagaciaguynn chJuszi,Jmo‘cﬁascmzcsmmmﬁcﬁwmméjﬁo cas.

For the proxy, documents to be presented to the officers at registration desk are: his/her own valid
ID Card, or family book or passport (in case of foreign investor) together with the copies of the

same documents of the shareholder, and letter of Proxy. If these documents are in foreign
languages, only the documents in English are acceptable.

myumu‘m;}jmmju aq ajznuijumcan cusgmnmnaawaunowmucsmmunjm o NSy 4 &

n19otin aet 580 33excuugs), fgemau § Seacdiv ddvss .

Without registration or the registration is incomplete due to absence of the said documents,
shareholders or proxies shall have no right to vote, question or make comments in the meeting.

2. §3U¥gL/ Quorum
nejuua.ummnmmu‘mmwsutﬁﬁéu 3 31999 zric%s’ounsgdzguehguﬁse 2 fudutd ez 54
VOUSY ARy 51% 2991UUSUKLUN TN MG Erln S uAnQssUZeMEInIUSO U
WONEUY Lenagu.

Shareholders' meeting can commence only if there are at least 2 or more shareholders attending
the meeting and their shares shall be more than 51% of the total shares, pursuant to the Articles of
Association of Joint Development Bank Public.

3. nmwdcunsuzgu/ Rules for proceeding
* Y10 Yznuge 030 nas 3§ i taSuusunyre Wudznaunaodn (R Yaacaliunejlsg .

The Chairman of JDB's Board of Directors or designated person will preside over and lead the
meeting;

* vl Yzmuneglzg Wugiguoifiodesuriazon: wax (ugE lnonavmuuttiaroay.
The Chairman of the meeting will propose the title of each agenda and order the voting of each
agenda.

* ISMWOLNI NAS cﬁntfjﬁ"lcﬁuazmﬁcﬁs‘fUzsjccriazaﬂ;az‘iunsajugau
The Managlng Director of JDB will present details of each agenda to the meeting.

. mjmnm vy EISuoenIy ‘cna“czmcus‘tuesjamuccaa Yrniunegdzgy awRuoiligiisy g gnag

ol Zﬂ.UE]‘]I']’].U 51ﬂcmumamvmmajnnumn”mﬂ ﬂ&]“lJJJE]’]I]’I.U uiy &JS’IUOEJZTIIJ 'Q""CUIJEJ?U]E]"I

1 |Rzusunigofiuniudaciungjdrguaalugfisu nas (Rules for the Shareholders’ Meeting of JDB) V1.0.0.11.2025



sauznuwam:] Ay, G015 3 ermautns dedo dznung gy Aol TS § e3na9oia g0
LV]O’IQ?JOZ]N‘]O.
After the Managing Director has presented details of each agenda, the Chairman will ask the
Shareholders and Proxies to make necessary comments or questions. Should there is a question,
the Managing Director shall give the answer forthwith. Only when there is no any further question
or comment, the Chairman shall ask the Shareholders and Proxies to vote on the agenda

. EJC2°ISOJJﬂSqu2JJ fioglnastnadu § surnsuniudsiuyne) wayr J899538393unounzmen
gz 29 NG UNS Uz L.

All attendees must switch off the sound of their mobile phones or any communication devices and
must not make any disturbing noise throughout the meeting.

4. mmﬁﬂﬁa’?unaad&gw Language in the meeting
. mmzﬁﬁﬂ‘tée}‘iunswzgu (CUUWIRIRD.
The language used in the meeting is Lao language.

5. §0303auuua3y/ Persons eligible to vote

| v v

o« Jurigtisy @ ejnagoin fdSuusunredinde) (29tdSnsusuRIsoUne e UsSUSSuKS0

v 9
=3

thaiiu fimed S033eccuugs).
Only the shareholders or proxies who have registered to attend the meeting are eligible to vote.

« TSV G 119011 zﬁﬁ‘cﬁﬁgmzu;m’éns’ounswzgu Qe ge2asoudy w0 J8nundescuugse.
Any shareholders or proxies who have not registered to attend the meeting and other attendees will
not be eligible to vote.

6. NWIAIOAVVKTY Voting
Yznunggdral auiugtuoosidioniutnidjawuusy) neusuugccidiisy § tnagoia o
GSuusumis i lnnUEua AdumInneUzgutdtuReolinily A90uugs) (Weno1utLnon
Tuniuiiuazeuuts) (oUIea1wdl ghisy tulnddiud anauseoidnio Nddudie)Ngazcuy
333109).
The Chairman of the meeting will propose the agendas that require voting, and only the
shareholders or proxies who DISAPPROVE votes with the matters proposed by the meeting are

invited to vote so as to facilitate vote counting process (meaning that for those who agree with
such matters are not necessary to cast a vote).

7. Budndngegniudjaccuussy/ Effectiveness of voting
o Sr3unwdquedinioty, nudlecuussRdaiuG «=ifudndn Adcds Jeveuugggmrensudijols
299 UOVS Mas Higslnuiives L.
For ordinary resolutions, the "Dis’approve votes" will become effective only if such votes account
for more than half of the total number of JDB shares attendlng the meetlng

+ S1uNUIUEfiRUnIL, n’]UQjE]uCCU‘lJR]j:]UCUTlJO [eJEudEndn :nmc.usaimutcuuajjmﬂemmzmjs?lau
U 283'Q°IIJO‘U QJI]SQ‘]J Z}j QJC’]"I:]UU’I Zﬂ:]UJJOU]E?‘lSOUﬂSqu%.U (CRZ .US_UQO.UTTJJ@’IEJITO’I 20% <[91U0Y
SU nas NYuln.

For special resolution, the "Disapprove votes" will become effective only if such votes account for

more than one third of total shareholders or proxies attending the meeting and having shares more
than 20% of the total JDB shares.

v @ v
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9.

NNNIVAIOLLUURTY Uiud N01x:0ol) ATnF)indygy §Imniingjuegliddynintduniud)
QYUY 29709280V, o TUNIWAINLEVUKISINTZU A (L [LUKIUINIIONLLUUKSI LASN.
All disapprove votes in any Agenda which is submitted to the Meeting after the Meeting has

announced the voting result of such Agenda shall be deemed invalid and could not be able to vote
anymore.

NIECAYEUNIWRINAVURSY Notification of voting result

@c%sﬁounsgdzgu 'azz‘cﬁ§Uccﬁjn'jaﬁutﬁunmﬁuazccuug’l‘tmﬁ'wgucﬁy Tnenuluazeuudsy i
céﬂzfﬁjsfu chaiusTigaveuuRSY.

Attendees will be informed about the voting result forthwith in the meeting with one share equals
one vote.

NWKLIVSIT L/ Questions

Jrnungdzgy sxRuolitvigisy § gnigoin fdSuusunregfinde) Jeanau § sucnge v
z‘f’izﬂueu?nmawsgnsgdzgu, TunsuieneIlyg wiwdsiguSnfutiouynoliavido.
Sadutii@asoudue awdJSngwoldimau § Jeacdiu ‘ZmﬁUzg.u, anﬁuﬁazﬁzﬁUzmmnngzgu (g
azw‘ﬁ‘tvﬁ@c’é’l SoLUiariao Unsugufiudiivye U,

The chairman of the meeting will ask the shareholders or proxies to question or make comments
on the issues which are not included in the agenda of the meeting, after the meeting has completed

its all agenda. Other attendees are not eligible to question or make any comments, unless the
Chairman asks such attendees to question or make comments in the meeting.

cJodnausesiandzsniunegusguuoly, Biisy § tinagoi huedgaelaniu § swcnieacdiv
Urzd fdgydinl2y Weuiygenneoouisniui nas rilnlo teserngdacdugisy 4 gnagoia
tSuuumeed 1R, TETiSY g en1golia fdSuusutyie MINUKLLN a8 N10KS0UY
Yzniunegdygl 9 azursuounIy nas 9 axusSuEingsunedygl Jdnsssifingaueiniu g e
(Fu299EnFo war neUsgauaxUdiung TunIunsua NI 283N TunNazl Ao,

Having been asked by the Chairman, any shareholders or proxies desirous to question or make
comments in the meeting must raise their hands and show the symbol as given by JDB to confirm
that they are truly the shareholders or proxies. Should the shareholders or proxies do not show such
symbol, the Chairman or JDB Directors, or Committee in charge of the meeting may reject

questions or comments made by the shareholders or proxies, and in this case the meeting shall not
be obliged to answer such questions.

s a

n

3 | azusunigofiunauadacliungjurguR ISugisSy mas (Rules for the Shareholders’ Meeting of JDB) V1.0.0.11.2025



tonzg1uantin 8/ Attachment 8

° ° ' as s od » ° Qo d X
€17CCUSUT NJONULSNTITU (AL YINT1U NNSJUIKRLTUND (ar21soung g
Instruction about the documents and evidence to be presented prior to attending the meeting

cz‘.']'saa’1.us:lznan‘Cwm1J53zanjuc§°|s’o.un9jU:zgut{iﬁsfnasnznxmmusﬁauiﬁnmzm Uromidy, ghisy g
(3013017 NR2I50.UN8Ural NrauiadSwitigudsgu, luigisoungjdrgungsndiloy nuwpIningu
210 0z Wwsudn (S13uLingoiia) LndeutenyungiuIna e gufiuce) nueriaznasl A9
For convenience in registration process to attend the Shareholders' Meeting of Joint Development
Bank Public, the shareholders or the proxies who will attend the Meeting are required to bring the
Invitation to the Meeting, the Letter for attending the meeting issued by the Lao Securities Exchange and
the Proxy (applicable for the proxy only) together with the documents for proof of identity as indicated
for each circumstance below:
» K P

1. t.gcaﬂsouzﬁci]nunﬂn/ attendees who are natural persons
TdacSasnzzunoliyze)fudin tdl UIerntoIA9nwUsu:
Shall present one of the following documents of their own at the time of registration:

+  JnUz<aafio/Identification Card

+  SuULtue0/Family book
o o3y (S13ugRuciagdznn)/Passport (for foreign investors)

2. gieBasoutiiulifiyniiu/ Attendees who are legal persons
WijaSuenzgaulnoisfirinln s 1 a9l deufiutenzaautnetly G3htuiiuagerniconadjmeusy:
Shall present one of the documents as given in 1. above plus one of the following documents at the time
of registration:
+ Tusryendgiiv/ Investment License

+  Tunzusu3gamenin/ Certificate of Enterprise Registration (Affidavit)
«  Tunzususnesusziugagn/ most recent Tax Certificate

o as

Sadueii2asounucsugisiuosniy fAsgtiid tuusuin Fangsiwoeny fNdSnsiwnuasuiu

on.
For attendee who is not the authorized director shall have the Proxy as attached hereto signed by the
authorized director.

(oNyR Ry Hnnuiidegiiuigusico cﬁscéﬂSounSjUzgu (S9cduwIgaciiguann dedudiiuwig
210 tnudnwidy 98unoiufindegtuniucdaandSdncdwigadioindefitd. daduwagaciaguznn
cUuszyunWidaZu wigad9fin dhndy. nes J8nusfnenygmsySilns fddutuniuniuriain

&
u.

All documents and evidence in a foreign language which are required to present prior to attending the
Meeting must be translated into Lao language and the translation shall be certified by an acceptable
translation company. The foreign language is permitted only for English. JDB has the right to reject
any documents contradicting this provision.

1 | simecusia convanu waz dnnm (2150.Un99UtaL (Instruction about the documents and evidence to attending the meeting) V1.0.0.11.2025



conegwantn 9/ Attachement 9

SowlandnndeegruISnaidSnudottay
Profile of Independent Board Member

o as o ° o a [x) v @ v
183, NIIUTLIY KT YTNON29ILVIGNIRWUAN IWSNFEQL (WONIULUUIN28 WISV
Profile of Independent Director who can act at shareholders proxies

991U finguieaioudNSy (anil 79/3wWg, AJ5UA 03 Nl 2019 (AL AWSUIN0ENIY
san sy (Andi 018/662, I95udi 27 Inua 2015 2sjazuzriwznuguasIgngy tiriind
J3FnInnzusy Agylgel18nzwdInwSnaway dr9oliss 1 T 3 29938U13NKLWIIINIVNJTTA.

According to Securities Law No.79/ NA, 03 December 2019, and Securities Issuance

No.108/LSCO, 27 June 2015, of Lao Securities Commission Office determining that the listed
company shall have independent Board Member for at least one-third in the Board of Directors.

NVINWSOLEONEUY LeniBy (nas) Jel1Zngeu1iddamiusndsay [9uou 3 vl [N
o °o O a o ' a a d &
eUIZNeWVINIWNIeTO 9 vy I G
Joint Development Bank Public (JDB), there are 3 independent Board Members from the
Board of Directors for 9 persons, which the details are as follow:

1. v yugy Semdn FUIBNWWVINIVSNIEZRL (T YLN1UnLULr LN IVEN9N
Mr. Boui’lsoum SISAVAT Independent Board Member and Head of the Nomination Committee
2.y NENSY LSy LUIZNILIDINIUSNRKEQL (1T YsNUazUErIUENIUNONISY
Mr. Souksavanh MANIVANH  Independent Board Member and Head of the Audit Committee
3. i U.9 A9U6 YuaISuy LLUIZNLIDINIUSOREQL
PhD. Chomkham BOUPHALIVANH Independent Board Member

1 |BozzmSnméiesigeuBndngyay (Profile of Independent Board Member)



Ynetn3nndeejgeuBnawlSnmsngny SGal:

Profile of Independent Board Member as follows:

vy Yugl Fwmdn

xlzmﬁm'lzmﬁﬁm’m%axaz

SFuniudng d=Suentn geif onsfoasisein fgrnidugnngRinuzmiSnzeta
nneRneoisgan Gicfsy uan, Snswsntuiy (sxfngnzwwigosn) W 1985.

Tutaur 2015-2020 waucdudioniany, tjgoussjuidnannzlud dnnzlud

nzgoINIugu. Juneid 2020 Aussndeady, NauidutclI8NSNKLy 2938
JUamauzeg JDB.

Mr. Bounsoum SISAVAT

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Bounsoum holds a Master's degree in National Economic Statistics
from the National Economic University at Baku City, Azerbaijan (formerly
part of the Soviet Union) in 1985. From 2015 to 2020, he held the position
of Director General of the Department and Assistant Deputy Prime Minister
at the Ministry of Finance. Since 2020, he has served as an Independent

Member of JDB's Board of Directors.

vy NS LUeiSy
UIBNIATINIVENKE
AUNIUINKIWEIVLIE 12NVCGU-NIUNELINIU N3Nt SNudSImauyaein

Tud 2015 wayr JusSuniudiuniudug grenat 10 J. dexdy, waucdy

gfSwosunuime J380 Iunzd) nongeudug 1y tiduiSnognny JDB (du

UIBNSNIrAr 2993u1UAMNIUL99 JDB Tud 2025.

Mr. Souksavanh MANIVANH

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Souksavanh graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Finance—Banking
from Rattana College of Business Administration in 2015 and has over 10
years of experience in accounting. He currently serves as Managing
Director of Chanthavong Audit and Accounting Company and began
working with JDB as an Independent Member of the Board of Directors in
2025.

2 | Bozuzm3nmédeegzzuaBnSngzaz (Profile of Independent Board Member)



viu Us. R9U6 YUIISIU
FUIBNILDINIVS N
FunawdngzSueaen fog:030 way Anowe fgemduniucdejeoiszin 13
Dy (39 mognuaw) WD 1998. Uzadiy, siuduGiosiafAveuasy war d3c3.Uo5n

Puefuia negogefinit cay WduEnogniiu JDB ugzuiBnSngvay 2999w
U3maugeg JDB Wl 2025.

PhD. Chomkham BOUPHALIVANH

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

PhD. Chomkham graduated with a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Political
Theory and Law from the Ho Chi Minh National Political Institute (Socialist
Republic of Vietnam) in 1998. Currently, he serves as Director General of
the Justice Administration Department at the Ministry of Justice, and began
working with JDB as an Independent Member of the Board of Directors in

2025.

3 | Bozuzm3nmédeelzuaBnSngzaz (Profile of Independent Board Member)



tanvguantn 10/ Attachement 10

wufizeiRpuhiinneksutisy nas stouRliy v 2024
JDB Shareholder meeting

Victory Monuments
vzi(g N\ 4

Wat That Phounf;
BIBHIDIITR) \ &)
(Somadel) S

Ministry Of
g Public Security.
That Dam Stupa | nEgojUs)iivnowEEnju
FOUNINAT Wl JDB Headquarter Servic...

Wat Sisaket{
BTN o A
v Vientiane Center
Shopping Mall

nejUzguiugiisy nes YzA1d 2024
Sud 09 iuo 2025, (a1 9:00 Ty
fiieguzauime Sy 6, tranawsoulinuen By

JDB'’s shareholder’'s Meeting 2024

Date 09 December 2025, 9:00 AM
At 6™ floor Meeting Room, Joint Development Bank Public. Scan JDB Map

v @ v
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